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Highlights

Exciting development pipeline remains on track, on budget and on schedule
® 25 Churchill Place — Construction underway and funding secured {(Note (1)}

® Crossrall statton — performing within budget and platform level handed over to Crossrall 5 months ahead of schedule
(Note (1))

® Jomt Ventures
— 20 Fenchurch Street - on schedule to be topped oui by the end of 2012 (Nate (1))
~  Shell Centre — 50 50 joint venture entered nto with Qatan Diar (Note (1))
® Land Assembly — post year end secured 100 0% ownership of the Wood Wharf joint venture (Note (1))

Existing sites — planning consenrts for sites at One Park Place, Heron Quays West and Newfoundland being reviewed
to maximise value (Note (1))

Continued leasing and pre let activity by Canary Wharf Group — demand from an increasingly diversified tenant
base

® Weghted average lease term 14 9 years assuming exercise of all break options (Note (1})
® Occupancy at 96 5% (31 December 2010 - 96 1%) (Note (1))

® Terms agreed with European Medicines Agency for 25 year lease of 250,000 sq ft at 25 Churchill Place at £46 50 psf
(3 3% ahead of pre let ERV) with options on further 4 floors Locks i a minimum rental commitment of €11 8m p a
(Note (17}

® Over 80,000 sq ft of further lettings, ncluding leases with BBVA and MetLife at One Canada Square, at rents in the
range £41 50 - £43 50 psf (Note (1))

® Lease exiension signed in 2012 with Bank of New York Mellon on over 152,000 sq ft in One Canada Square at £42 50
psf (10 4% ahead of built ERV} {Note (1))

Portfoho resihent in the face of economic headwinds with strong retail performance
® Retal performing well — portfolic valuation up 8 1% over the year and turnover up by 2 2% (Note (1))

® Benchmark inmal yield 5 35% (unchanged frorm 2010) (Note (1))
® Market value of the investment portioho up by 1 3% over the year, net of 0 6% decline since 30 June 2011 (Note (1))
[

£20 O0m valuation uphft on 25 Churchill Place over the year with additonal £60 Om estmated by valuers to come
(Note (i)

® Including land, portfolio valuation up 1 8% over the year {net of 0 2% dechne since June 2011) {Note {1))

Secure financial position retained giving flexibility for 2012

® 5 year facility secured against 50 Bank Street with £82 3m drawn down in June 2011, £190 Om construction loan
facihty secured against 25 Churchill Place (Note {1))

® Scheduled Ioan amortisation of £66 Om paid in the year (Note (n})

® Average Group loan matuniy of 13 9 years i line with weighted average lease term {(Note (1))

Financial summary

® Adusted net assets £1,452 1m at 31 December 2011, an increase of £224m or 16% from £1,428 7m at
31 December 2010, net of a reduction ¢f £32 8m or 2 1% since 30 June 2011 {Note (1})

® Adjusted NAVY per share 180p compared with 187p at 31 December 2010 and 194p at 30 June 2011 (Note (i)
® Underlying profit before tax £4 8m (2010 — £28 8m) (Note {v))

Note

{n Refer to Business Review

() Refer 1o Note 21

{m) Refer to Note 4

{v} Rafer to Consolidated Income Statement
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Results in Brief

2011 2010
Note £m £m
Rental ncome (excluding tenant incentives adjustments) {1) 251.3 287 5
Underlying operating profit {1y 207 4 2868 4
Capital and other iiems
- write down of Lehman incentives (1 - (50 1)
— revaluation of investrments In associales (1) 76 27
- profit on sale of investment property {iv) - 1551
—termination of AlG facility (V) - 144 5
- net revaluation movemenis {(vi) 637 3279
- net denvatives and Preference Shares expense D! (288 7) {127 1}
— debt repurchase costs {vi) - (180
Underlying profit before tax (b} (vm) 46 288
(LossYprofit on ordinary activittes before tax (1) (212 8) 463 8
Tax {1} 1287 (42 9)
{Loss)profit after tax {n) (84 1) 4209
Basic and dituted (losses) or earnings per share (v} (9 0)p 41 3p

Note
() SeeNnte5

{1} See Conzohdated Income Statermenit
{n) See Note 12

(v} See Note 11

{v) See Note 21

See Nete 6

{vi

{wn} See Note 7
(

{

vi) See Nate 4
1x) See Note 8
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Chairman’'s Operational Review

INTRODUCTION

In 20611 the Group
remained successiul
acrogss all  activities
ranging from construction
through to leasing and
assel management whilst

continued steps were
taken to dnve future
growth

The Group acgured
1000% control of the
Waood Wharf joint venture
which currently has

consent for 4 6m sq ft of

development Coupled with
existing siies at Canary Wharf, there 1s now scope for 8 3m
sqg ft of further development on or around the Estate Away
from Canary Wharf, the Group entered into a joint venture
with Qatan Diar which successfully bid for the miuxed use
redevelopment of the 5 25 acre Shell Centre site at the heart
of London's South Bank The Group 1s also involved, through
a jont venture, n the 680,000 sq ft development at
20 Fenchurch Street

The recently acquired siies at Wood Wharf and the Shell
Cenire will both be mixed use business, retall and
residential developments and will enable the Group to
diversify its tenant base and #ts activities The Group now
has a development pipeline of over 11m sg ft owned
directly by the Group or through joint ventures The extent
and range of these siies will ensure that the Group s well
positioned o adapt to changing market demands and 1o
take advaniage of the widely anticipaied shortage of
residential and Grade A office space

Furo and Eurozore uncertanty overshadowed the year
Perhaps, unsurprisingly, demand and supply were
therefore both relatvely constrained in the London market
There also remains scme hestiancy In the occupational
market However, although there was a greater level of
fragility in the real estate ofice market in the last months of
2011, London remains perceived as a relatively safe haven
for real estate investors

Leasing actwvity at Canary Wharf held up remarkably well
dunng the year, despite these market conditons This 1s
best demonstrated by the conclusion of the pre tet of
250000 =g i in the bulding now being construcied for
EMA at 25 Churchill Place and by other lettings to a range
of new tenants ai Canary Whaif Further evidence of the
continuing attraction of the Canary Wharf Estate was
provided shortly afier the year end by the lease extension
signed by Bank of New York Melion on over 152 000 sq it
in One Canada Square The receni mflux of Shell
employees and the phased movement  of
JP Morgan employees to thewr new European
headqguarters n 2012 will further increase the working

population ai Canary Wharf The completion of these
moves will mark a milestone i the development of Canary
Wharf as, for the first time, the working populauon will oe in
excess of 100 000 - a notable achievement

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Year on year the market value of the investment pertfolio
increased by £620m or 1 3%, primanly reflecing an
improvement in rental values, and net ot afall of 0 6% 1n the
second half of the year At the year end the benchmark
initial yield for the office portfolio remaned at 5 35% and
the weighted average eguivalert yield was 54% In
comparison with 53% at 30 Jung 2011 For the retal
portfolio the weighted average eguivalent yeld was
unchanged al 52% Including development sites the
market value of the total porifolo increased by £87 Om or
1 8%, net of a reduction of £125m or 0 2% in the second
half

Adjusted NAV per share firsshed the year at £1 90, n
companson with £1 B7 at 31 Decemper 2010 an increase
of 1 6% over the year but net of a reduction of 4p or 2 1%
in the second half as a result of the fall In the property
valuation

The underlying profit for the year of £4 6m compared with
£28 8m for 2010 The reduction in underlying profit was
parily attnbutable to a reduction in rental income, following
the sale of 2 properties 0 the previous year and partly as
a result of a reduction in Income from lease surrenders The
reduction in profit from these factors was partly mitigated
by reduced financing costs following repayment of the
Shareholder Loan in October 2010 More details can be
found in Business review — Operating results

At 31 December 2011, the Group had unsecured cash
deposits of £864 8m, of which £853 5m was attnbutable to
Canary Wharf Group The weighted average cost of
Canary Whar{ Group's debt was 8 2% and the weighted
average matunty was 13 8 years This compares with the
weighted average unexpired lease term of 149 years
assuming exercise of all break optons Net of cash the
Group's look through LTV at 31 December 2011 was
66 7%

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

At Canary Wharf, construction activity by the Group has
intensified duning 2011 and in recent months Following the
pre let of 250,000 sq i ©© EMA, construction of the
525,000 sq ft bullding at 25 Churchill Place commenced in
February cof this year The concrete core has aljeady
reached level 6 and 1s due to be topped out In June 2012
with steel construction starting the following month Interim
works are now beng undertaken for JP Morgan at
Riverside South to bring this sie up to ground level Work
on the Crossrail station at Canary Wharf 1s continuing within
budget and the station box was completed and handed
over to CLRL 5 months ahead of schedule earlier in March
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Chairman’s Operational Review contnued

to allow preparations for the tunnelling machines The
completed Crossrail project will be a welcome addition to
London’s transport infrastructure i 2018 and will also
facilitate further expansion on land at and adjacent to the
Canary Wharf Estate such as the Wood Wharf site

Discussions continued dunng the latter half of 20119 for the
acguisiion of 100 C% ownership of the Wood Whart joint
venture These discussions resulied in the Group acquining
the 25 0% stake of Ballymore mn December 2011 and the
50 0% stake of BWB in January 2012 The Group now has
full control over the timing and design for this scheme,
which will be a mixed use development By area, this site
1s approximately one third of the size of the Estate and 1t 1s
ikely tc appeal to a wide range of tenants, which wiil
exiend the current diversification of the Canary Wharf
tenant base The Group 1s now considering which options
for development are likely to be most effective for current
and future market conditons The Group is also currently
reviewing options tor its exising schemes at 1 Park Place,
Heron Quays West and Newfoundiand in order to ensure
that the Group 1s best placed to continue offering potental
occupiers bespoke hugh quakty space which reflects the
market’s changing needs

In addition to the EMA pre let, transactions were concluded
at Canary Whart on more than 80,000 sq ft including
lettings to BBVA and Metlfe Services in One Canada
Square and to G488 Secure Solutions in 40 Bark Street In
January 2012 Bank of New York Mellon also remewed its
lease on 152,000 sqg ft in One Canada Square which was
due to expire in 2014 for an addiional term of 8 years
These fransactions were completed at, or above the
valuers' ERV for lettings of extsting space Reflecting this
acivity the occupancy rate In bulldings at Canary Wharf
owned by the Group stood at 96 5% at the year end These
recent transactions are a sign of confidence that the Group
1s well placed to continue to match demand for high quality
space from an increasingly diverse range of seclors

Canary Wharf retail had ancther outstanding year with
valuations increasing by 8 1% Turnover was up 2 2% for
the year to December 2011 footfall increased by 1 52% to
739,760 per week and all retall units are occupied It can
be seen from this performance that the impact to date of
the Westfield Stratford City development on Canary Wharf
has been muted Moreover the target demographics of the
two malls are quite distinct and the tenant mix at Canary
Wharf 1s very broad, including mdependent, national and
international brands

Io satisfy demand from shoppers and relailers, the Group
15 now bulding 143,000 sag it of new retall space at Canary
Wharf Construction 1s continuing on the 43,000 sq ft
extension © the Jublee Place Mall This extension will
create an additional 25 units which will open in November
2013 A number of these units are already In solicitors’
hands As a further indicaton of confidence n reta:l at
Canary Wharf, work 1s commencing on the devetlopment of

100 000 sq ft of new retall above the Crossrail station at
Canary Wharf

Away from Canary Whart, in July 2011 the Group entered
into a 505C jont venture with Qatan Diar which
successiully bid for the redevelopment of the Sheli Centre
site on the South Bank Shell will remain in the famous Shell
Tower but have also agreed tc anchor the development by
pre letting & 210,000 sg it office bulding on the site
Extensive consultanon on the redevelopment of this site 1s
currently being conducted with the community and a range
of stakeholders before the final shape of the mixed use
master plan will be completed It 1s anticipated that an
application for planning consent for this site will be
submitted prior to the year end

Construcuon of the 37 storey building at 20 Fenchurch
Street started in January 2011 The Group 1s acting as
construction manager and s co development manager
with Land Securities in this joint venture project Piling has
been comoleted and the concrete core will soon be
topped out Steel work has now commenced and following
the decision to proceed with the full build out last year the
buiiding 1s on schedule for completion In 2014

CONCLUSION

In an eventful year both the Clympic Games and the
Queens Jubiiee celebrations will promote London to a
global audience The Olympic Games wilt In particular,
place both the East End and Canary Wharf at the forefront
of the worlds attention which 1g likely to further enhance
thetr respective proflles and emphasise the eastward shift
of London’s centre of gravity

Although demand for high grade office space across
London has reduced largely due to broader economic
uncertainties, supply has remaned relatively constrained
Overseas real estate investors and businesses are also still
being affracted to the relative stabilily transparency and
traditional strengths of London as a pre-eminent global
business centre With the benelt of an enviable
development pipeline and proven development and
construction skilis, the Group can adapt to fluctuating
market conditons and tenant demand and will be able to
take advantage of the improved market climate once the
economic cycle turns

DAVID PRITCHARD
Chairman
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Business Review

The following Business Review ams to provide
shareholders with a summary of ihe business of the Group
both dunng the year ended and as at 31 December 2011,
as well as summarising significant events which have
occurred after this date

A st of defined terms used throughout these financial
staterments 1s provided in Definitions

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

The pnncipal asset of the Company is its indirect
nvestment in Canary Wharf Group which 1s engaged
property Investment and development and s currently
prnimarty focused on the development of the Estate
Canary Whart Group s also nvolved, through joint

Songbird Estates plc

ventures, in the redevelopment of 20 Fenchurch Street
and, since July 2011, the Shell Centre In addition, Canary
Whart Group has been mnvolved In a joint venture to
develop Wood Wharf In January 2012 Canary Wharf
Group completed its acquisiion of WWLP and associated
companies and was granied a new overnding 250 year
lease of Wood Wharf (see Business Review — Wood
Whart)

At 31 December 2011 Canary Wharf Group’s investment
property pertfolic compnised 16 completed properties (out
of the 35 constructed on the Estate) totalling approximately
7 0m sq ft NIA The properties included in Canary Wharf
Group's Investment property portfolio at 31 December
2011 are shown n the table below

External
NIA Leased valuation
Property address sq ft % £m  Prncipal tenants and sub tenants
One Churchill Place 1,038,500 1000 7250 Barclays, BGC
10 Cabot Square/ 634,100 1000 3700 Barclays, WPP Group
5 North Cclonnade
20 Capot Square/ 553,100 1000 318.0 Barclays
10 South Colornade
One Canada Sguare 1220 500 850 659.5 Bank of New York Mellon, Moody's, HSBC,
Mirror Group, State Street, FSA, NYSE,
BBVA, Metlfe
33 Canada Square 562,700 1000 366.0 Ciigroup
20 Bank Street 546 500 100 0 430.0 Morgan Stanley
40 Bank Street 606,000 900 340.0 Shell, Skadden, Allen & Overy, ANZ, JLL
50 Bank Street 210,600 1000 147.5 Northern Trust, Goldenberg Hehmeyer
10 Upper Bank Street 1,027,300 1000 690.0 Cliford Chance FTSE, Total
Cabot Place Retail 141,600 89 1 172.0 Bootis, Tesco Zara and other retail tenants
Canada Place Retall 71.300 1000 176.8  Gap, Next and other retall tenants
Jubitee Place Retail 93,500 1000 1327 Boots, M&S Food, Wagamama and other retail
tenants
Churchill Place Retail 34,900 99 6 20.3 Barclays, Jame's ltaban and other retail tenants
16-19 Canada Square 213,600 i000 72,5 Warrose Food & Home, Reebok, Plateau
Restaurant
Reuters Plaza 8 300 1000 15,5 Carluccio’s Smollensky s
Park Pavilion 22 900 1000 20.7 Lloyds Bank Canteen The Parlour Roka and
Wahaca
Car parks - - 44.0
Total 6,991,000 96 5 4,700.5
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Business Review contnued

At 31 December 2011, the investment property portiolio
was 96 5% let In connection with the sale of 25 Bank Street
10 J P Morgan in December 2010, a surrender was agreed
of JP Morgan space on floors 44 — 46 of One Canada
Square totalling 87,500 sq ft This space was previously
leased unil Aprl 2013 and J P Morgan paid a surrender
prermium equivalent to the foregone rent and service
charges, together with difapidauons Prior to the surrender
by JP Morgan, the investment property portfolo was
97 1% let at 31 December 2010 whereas following the
surrender the investment portfolio was 96 1% let

As well as the rental income generated from completed
propertigs, income 15 generated from managing the entire
Estate which, n additton to the completed properties
owned by Canary Whart Group includes 19 properties
wotalling 8 7m sq ft in other ownerships

The properties of Canary Wharf Group are under lease 1o
a range of tenants At 31 December 2011, the weighted
average unexpired lease term for the office investment
portfolio was approximately 16 2 years or 149 years
assuming the exercise of outstanding break options
(31 December 2010 - 169 years or 157 years
respectively) Of the sguare footage under lease at
31 Becember 2011, 80 6% does not expire or cannot be
terminated by tenants during the next 10 years

LEASING

In the year ended 31 December 2071 over 57 000 sq fi of
leases were completed in One Canada Square including

» BBVA took 28,993 sq ft on level 44 for a 15 year term
with a break option after 10 years on the whole and on
part (5,000 - 7,500 sq {t) after 5 years

* Metlife Services 100k an additional 22,072 sq ft on level
50 for a 10 year term with a break option after 5 years

These leases were at rents in the range £41 50 — £43 50
psf which compares with the valuers' ERV for single floor
fettings of £41 50 psf

In 40 Bank Street leases over an additional 24,000 sq ft
were completed with a range of tenants including G4S
Secure Solutions over 18 113 sq ft on a short term lease

In January 2012, Canary Wharf Group renewed leases with
Bank of New York Mellon on 152 226 sq ft n One Canada
Square for a term of 8 years from 1 January 2014 at a rent
of £42 50 psf (10 4% ahead of built ERV) subject to an 18
monih rent free penod There will be tenant only break
options over 2 floors totalling 56 249 sq ft In January 2019
subject to a 10 month rent penalty This compares with the

valuers” ERV for lettings of existing space greater than
100 000 sq ft of £38 50 psf

The FSA's short term fease of fioor 24 in One Canada
Square (26 200 sq ft) determined on 31 December 2011
as did Satyam s lease on floor 10 (2,237 sq ft) In addition,
HSBC has exercised s break option over a floor in One
Canada Square (27,104 sq ft) with effect from March 2012

All options to sub let space back to Canary Whart Group
have been exercised and at 31 December 2011 the
estmated net present value of sub let habiimes was
approximately £31 Om discounted at 6 2%, being Canary
Wharf Group's weighted average cost of debt
{31 December 2010 - £37 6m discounted at 6 3%) These
sub let commitments have been reflected i the market
valuation of the Group's preperties

RETAIL

With a working population of just over 85,000 people and
excellent transport hnks, Canary Wharf contnues to
develop as an exciting retall and leisure destination The
arrival of J P Morgan and Shelt staff in 2012 wtll bring an
additonal 10,000 people working on the Estate

Canary Wharf Group enjoyed strong reiall performance in
the penod, with turnover up 2 2% for the year to December
2011 and near 100 0% occupancy Agreements for 12
retail units were exchanged durnng the penod, with a
further 6 since the year end These include coffee shops
elecincal goods health iood, restaurants and clothing
outlets Boisdale opened a new 12,00C sq it hve jazz,
whisky and cigar restaurant in Aprl 2011 adding to the
excellent mix of hospitalty destinations and further
increasing visitor numbers 1n the evenings and at
weekends

Canary Wharf Group continues to undertake active and
successful asset management of sts retall space Rents
remain highly competitive and the retail at Canary Wharf s
regarded as one of the leading prime retall developmenits
in the UK Canary Wharf Group 1s constantly striving to
extend the scale and breadth of the retall offering Kiosk
spaces have been created in Reuters Plaza and
underground car park space has been developed to
extend several retall units Canary Wharf Group 1s now
proceeding with a 43,000 sq {t extension of retad into the
car park beneath the Jubildee Flace mall Despite the
difficult retall clhimate, a number of tenants are also
expancding on the Estate ncluding Jaeger angd
Aquascutum, and there 1s a waiing lisi of tenants wanting
to take space on the Estate Canary Wharf i1s a specialist
mall unlike the recently opened Westfield Stratford City mall
which 1s expected to operate as a regional mall similar to

¢] 2011 Report & Financial Statements




Lakeside Thurrock and Bluewater Canary Wharf Group I1s
confident thai the atmosphere and unique surroundings at
Canary Wharf will disunguish this offering from other retail
areas and that retall at Canary Wharf will continue to thrive

CONSTRUCTION

In August 2011, Canary Wharf Group announced that EMA
had agreed a pre let of 250000 sg ft In a new office
building of approximately 525 000 sq it to be constructed
at 25 Cnurchill Place Construction of the shell and core of
the bullding commenced In February 2012 In accordance
with Canary Wharf Group’s development strategy at
Canary Wharf, the substructure was completed previously

EMA will occupy the promenade ground and the first 9
office floors in the 20 storey bulding The agreed rent 1s
£46 50 pst (33% ahead of pre let ERV) commencing in
January 2015 with 5 yearly upwards only rent reviews The
length of the lease 15 25 years with no break options and
EMA will receive the equivalent of a 37 month rent free
penod in cash, which will be used to pay for EMAs fit out
of the bulding EMA alsc has a call opton over an
additional 108,000 sq ft The lease to EMA locks in a
mmimum rental commitment of £11 8m per annum The
balance of the space 1s being marketed by Canary Whari
Group as construciion progresses Canary Wharf Group
has entered into a new £1900m construction and
develocpment locan facity (see Business Review -~
Borrowings) which will be utihsed to fund the construction
of thus building

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES

In January 2010, Canary Whart Group acquired a long
leasehold interest in 1 Park Place This site benefits from a
planning consent for approximately 950,000 sq ft of
development, but Canary Whart Group has prepared and
ntends to submit an application for a revised scheme of
approximately 650,000 sq ft

Heron Quays West has consent for an office scheme of
13m sq ft however a number of alternative development
options, both for office, and also mixed office and
residential use are now being considered

Consent has been granted on the adjacent Newioundland
site for 200,000 sq fi of hotel and serviced apartments An
alternative all resideniial concept s being considered

The remawning development sie at North Quay has
planning consent for 2 4m sa &t

In summary the total development capacity at the date of
this report at each of Canary Wharf Group's development
sites s as follows

Songbwd Estates plc

NIA
msq ft
Based on existing planning permissions
— North Quay 239
— Heron Quays West 133
— Newfoundland 023
— Crossral retail 010
~ 1 Park Place (proposed development) 065
4 70
Secured subsequent 10 the year end
— Wood Wharf 460
230
Sold to J P Morgan
- Riverside South (Canary Whari Group acting as
development and construction manager) 190

The site at Riverside South was acquired by J P Morgan in
November 2008 and Canary Whart Group was appointed
to act as development and construction manager under a
contract with a term to Qctober 2016 The terms of this
contract include a nght of first offer for Canary Wharf Group
in the event J P Morgan decides to sell the site Initiat
infrastructure works have been completed on the site and
J P Morgan has instructed Canary Wharf Group to bnng
the development {0 street level

Canary Wharf Group has received £76 Om as an advance
of developer's profit in conjunction with this development
This sum will be sei aganst Canary Wharf Group's
entittement to future profits 1f J P Morgan proceeds with full
construction

20 FENCHURCH STREET

In 2010, Canary Wharf Group and Land Secunties formed
20 FSLP a 50 50 joint venture to develop 20 Fenchurch
Street In the City The existing property, which was
acquued as a cleared site with some ancillary
neighbouring holdings was sold by Land Secunties to this
partnership for a consideration of £90 2m, in ine with the
March 2010 valuaton After syndication, Canary Wharf
Group has retained a 15 0% equity interest in this project

Planning consent for the propesed 37 storey buillding was
originally granted i October 2009 The ouiding will
provide approximately 890,000 sq {t of world class space
in floor plate sizes of 14,000 sq ft 10 28,000 sq ft, with a sky
garden on the top 3 floors Some revisions to the
consented scheme, recommended by Canary Wharf
Group to improve s buldability and leting prospects
have been incorporated and received planning consent in
July 2011 Construction commenced on siie N January
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Business Review contnued

2011 and s progressing on schedule and within budget
20 FSLP has made the decision to procesed with full buld
out of the scheme, targeting completion in Apni 2014 The
building 1s an schedule to be topped out by the end of
2012

Land Securities and Canary Wharf Group were appointed
as joint development managers and both are responsible
for leasing with Land Securities taking the lead Canary
Wharf Contractors Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Canary Wharf Group was appointed as construction
manager

SHELL CENTRE

in July 2011, Canary Whari Group and QGatan Dar
concluded an agreement to redevelop the Shell Centre
Canary Wharf Group and Qatan Diar have entered intc a
50 80 joint venture and have committed o coninbuting
£150 Om each to the joint venture to secure ithe 5 25 acre
site ocn a 999 year lease Canary Wharf Group's
contnibution 15 being satshed from existng corporate
resources The aggregate £300 Om payment for the site 1s
conditonal on planming pernission being recewved for the
project within 3 years Canary Wharf Group will act as
construction manager for the project and will also be jont
develoepment manager with GQatan Diar The joint
development manager fees generated from the transaction
will be apportioned between the parties

The development will be mixed use comprising office,
residential and retal space The existing 27 storey tower In
the middle of the Shell Centre will be preserved and
retained by Shell Shell will also take a 210 000 sq ft pre let
of one of the new office buldings to be constructed or the
site

Digcussions have commenced with the local planning
authonty and relevant stakeholders to establish planning
constraints, detalled designs and a tmetable for
construction of a project which will re energise an
important section of London's South Bank

WOOD WHARF

On 18 January 2012, Canary Wharf Group announced it
had acquired full ownership of WWLP and associated
companies and entered into an overnding 250 year lease
of Wood Wharf

Canary Wharf Group acqured 100 0% of WWLP by
combining 1ts own 25 0% effective interest with the 75 0%
interests acquired from its onginal joint venture partners,
BWB and Ballymore It also agreed the restructuring of

BWB s ongoing participation as freeholder of Wood Wharf
As a result Canary Wharf Group now has control over the
tming and design of the scheme The acquisition of
Ballymare's 25 0% effective inierest was completed in
December 2011 and BWB's 50 0% effectve interest was
acquired In January 2012

Wood Whart will be a new mixed use development scheme
adjacent to the Estate In May 2009 the current master plan
received planning consent for 4 6m sqg ft net This
represents an area almost one third of the size of the Estate
and compnses approximately 1 25m sg fi of residental
development 0 2m sg ft of retal, 3 Tm sq ft of offices and
a 0 2m sq it hotel Detaled consent was granted on the 3
office bulldings closest to the Estate totalling 1 5m sq ft net
in Jduly 2009 In light of changing market conditions, the
best use of this site 1§ being reviewed, potentially altering
the mix of uses In favour of residential, reducing the size of
mndividual office buldings to reflect target sectors and to
differentiate the new district from the existing Estate

The consideration for the acouwsition of BWB's 50 0%
mterest i1 Wood Wharf subsequent to the year end in
January 2012 was £52 4m together with a restructured 250
year lease that will see an annual ground rental payment to
BWB increase 10 £6 0m by 2016 For the remainder of the
lease this payment will be subject to upwards only review
linked {o the passing rent achieved on the office bulldings
{the ground rent being eguivalent to 3 75% of passing
rents) and the ground rents paid by purchasers of the
residential apartments built on the scheme The £52 4m
payment comprises an upfront payment of £4 4m and a
sernes of 4 annual payments up to and including 2015 The
total consideration paid in December 2011 for the
acquisition of Ballymore's 25 0% effective interest in Wood
Whart was £38 Om

CROSSRAIL

Construction commenced on the Crossral station at
Canary Wharf in May 2009 and Canary Wharf Group has
assessed that 1t has now fulfilled its funding obligations to
the project CLRL will pay a fixed price of £350 Cm and
Canary Wharf Group bears the rnsk for the difference
between actual costs and the fixed price payable by CLRL
The onginal antcipated total cost of the staton was
£500 0m Construction of the station box continues to plan
and the box has been completed 5 months ahead of
schedule and the platform level handed over to CLRL n
March 2012 to enable access for the tunnelling machines
The project 1s performing within budget The first trains are
due to run 1in 2018 when Crossrail opens for passenger
service Planning permission has also been granted for a

8 2011 Repori & Financial Statements




100,000 sq fi retall area above the station which wili be
subject to a long lease to Canary Wharf Group

Canary Wharf Group's contrbution to the station will be
credited against any transport Section 108 coninbutions
for certain agreed development sites on the Estaie
{comprnising 25 Churchill Place, North Quay, Heron Quays
West (ncluding Newfoundland) and Riverside South)
which may be required as pari of the London Plan
Accordingly, costs borne by Canary Wharf Group on
construction of the station are allocated to these
development properties

VALUATIONS

The nel assets of the Group, as stated in its Consolidated
Balance Sheet at 31 December 2011, were £1.653 4m In
arnving at this totat

(1) properties held as investments were carned at
£4 509 7m, which represents the marke value of those
properties of £4,700 5m at that date as determined by
Canary Wharf Group s external valuers, CBRE, Savills
or Cushman, less an adjustment of £183 1m for tenant
incentives and £7 7m for deferred lease negotiation
cosis, and

(n) properties held for development were carried at
£291 Bm representing the market value of those sites
of £293 5m as determined by Canary Wharf Group’s
external valuers, less an adjustmeni of €1 7m for
deferred lease negotiation costs

At 31 December 2011, the benchmark inial yield adopted
by the valuers remained unchanged from 30 June 2011 at
535% The weighted average yields applied in derving
the market valuation of Canary Wharf Group's investment
properties can be summarnsed as

31 December 30 June 31 December
2011 2011 2010
% % %

Office portioho
Weighted average

intial yield 51 50 48
Weighted average
equivalent yield 54 53 52

Retail portfolio
Weighted average

inimal yield S 50 49
Weighted average
eauvatent yield 5.2 52 54

The valuavons at 31 December 2011 are based on
assumptions  which  nclude fuiure rental growth,
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antcipated voud costs the appropniate discount rate or
yield and, in the case of development properties the
estimated costs of completion In valuing the propertes on
the Estate the valuers also take account of market
evidence which included the letungs compleied in the year
referred to earlier in this Business Review

The reial portfoho continued io perform strongly and over
the year the market value increased by 8 1% of which
3 6% was in the second half The market value of the office
portfolio Increased by 0 3% over the year, net of a 12%
dechne since June 2011

Taking office and retail iogether, the wvaluation of the
investmeant portfolio on the bass of market value increased
by £6820m or 13% and after allowing for addibons and
adjustments in respect of lease incentives, the carrying
value increased by £43 9m or 1 0% In the second half of
the year the valuation of the investment portfoho reduced
by £26 Om or 0 6% and the carrying value reduced by
£352m or 0 8% The reducticn was pnmarlly driven by a
shght softening 0 yields as detaled above

CBRE and Sawvlls have provided a joint opinion as at
31 December 2011 that the market value of sites held for
development comprising those sites (excluding Wood
Whari and Riverside South) as disclosed in the
Development section of this Business Review, was
£293 5m This includes 25 Churchill Place, valued at
£80 O0m by Savills, where construction of the shell and core
commenced after the year end The market value of this
site has increased by £20 Om over the year, with a furiher
£60 Om of developer's proit estimated by the valuers as
stll to come and excluded from the valuation of the site n
its existimg state at 31 December 2011 The iotal market
value of the development sites of £293 5m compares with
£268 5m at 31 December 2010 Taking into account capital
expenditure in the year and adjusting for deferred
negotiation costs there was an increase 10 carrying value
of £19 8m of which £109m has been recogrused since
30 June 2011 In valuing the properties held for
development, the valuers have allowed for estimated costs
to complete including an allowance for fit out and
developer's profit In addition they have allowed for leting,
dispesal, marketing and financing costs

Over the year market value of the entire property portfolio
increased by £87 Om or 1 8% and the carrying value net
of addilons and adjusting for tenant incentives, increased
by £63 7m or 1 3% These movements were driven by the
factors referred to above In the second half of the year the
market value reduced by £12 5m or 0 2% and the carrying
value reduced by £24 3m or 0 5%
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BUSIHeSS ReV!eW continued

As previously disclosed, a number of properiies are subject to leases back to Canary Wharf Group These have been
taken into account In the valuations summansad 1n the table below, which shows the carrying value of Canary Wharf
Group's properties for accounts purposes, in comparison with the supplementary valuations provided by the external

vatuers

31 December 2011

30 June 2011 31 December 2010

Market Market Market
value in value in value in
Carrying existing Carrying existing Carrying existing
value state value state value state
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Retained portfolio
~ Investment properties {(n 45097 4,700.5 45326 47265 44455 4,638 5
- Properties held for development (i) 291.8 293.5 2800 2800 268 5 268 5
4,801.5 4,994.0 48126 5,006 5 4,714 0 49070
Sold property
Property under construction
at Riverside South {m} 75.6 133.7 760 1317 746 127 3
48771 5,127.7 48886 51382 47886 50343

Note

{1} The carrying valua ~apresents market valug less an adjustmant for leage ncertives and deferred lease negotiation costs Tha tenant incentives and
deferred lease rmsgotaton costs adjustment at 31 Decemser 2011 was £1980 8m (30 Jure 2011 - £182 9m 31 December 2010 — €193 Om) Market

value n existing state 1s shown prior 1o these amounts

(1) Properties held for development incluaes 25 Churchill Placo which has been classified as under construction from February 2012 following the
commencement of shell and core works The carrying value represents marxet value less an adjustment for ocicrred lease negonation costs of £1 7m

(i} The carrying value at 21 December 2011 represents £61 Om cf costs transferred to cost o. sales {30 June 2011 -£58 2m 31 December 2010 -£55 6mj
anad £14 6m ransferred to payments on account (30 June 2071 ~ £17 8m 31 December 2010 - £12 0m) Market value in existing state ncludes the
present value of the minimum developers profi Fom the sale of Riverside South assuming J P Morgan does not proceed with full bulld out and

excludes the profit recogrised on the disposal of the site in 2008

OPERATING RESULTS

The following review of the Group's operating results
relates to the year ended 31 December 2011 The
comparatives relate to the year ended 31 December
2010

Revenue 18 generated primanly by the rents and service
charges earned by Canary Wharf Group from its property
interests on the Estate {ogether with turnover recognised
on construction contracis and fees earned from
construction and development management agreements
Total revenue for 2011 was £352 3m, against £359 6m for
2010, of which rental ncome after spreading lease
incentives Increased from £233 8m to £250 Om

In the first quarter of 2010, the Administrator ceased
paying rent on 25 Bank Street As a result the unamortised
Incentives atinbutable to Lehmans lease totalling £50 1m
were written off to the Consolidated Income Statement and
disclosed as a capital and other ttem The impact of
spreading lease ncentives was to reduce rental income by
£13m in 2011 (2010 — £3 6m excluding the accelerated
charge relating to Lehman)

Excluding the accounting adjustments arising from
spreading tenant incentives, rental iInceme reduced from
£287 bm to £251 3m, a reduction of £36 2m or 12 6%,
primarily attributable to the sale of 2 properties in 2010
During 2010 the Group also recognised £18 3m of income
1In cennection with the termination of certain leases on the
Estate by tenants whereas in 2011 only £ 1m of such
Incame was recognised

Service charge income increased from £74 3m for 2010 to
£752m, an increase of £09m or 12% Miscellaneous
income, including insurance rents, the provision of tenant
specific services outside the standard service charge and
fees recognised on ihe provision of development and
construction management services increased from £17 8m
for 2010 to £21 6m for 2011

Turnaver for 2011 alsc included £5 4m recognised on the
construction pre sold property, accounted for as
construction contracts compared with £154m in 2010
The reduction in revenue from this source was due o the
completion of the inital phase of infrastructure works on the
Riverside South site
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Cost of sales includes rents payable and property
management cosis, movements on provisions for certain
other lease commitments, as well as costs allocated to cost
of sales on construction contracts Rents payable and
property management costs were £101 1m for 2011 1n
comparnson with £98 9m for 201C Taking mnto account
service charge and property related miscellaneous income
totalling £956 6m for 2011 (2010 ~ £92 1m) a dehcit was
recorded on property management of £55m (2010 -
£6 8m} This deficit was attnibutable to unlet space on
which service charges were not recoverable

Prowisions and accruals relating to the remaining vacant
leasehold property, rent support commitments entered Into
In prior years and certain other obligations of Canary Wharf
Group increased by £1 9m 1n 2011 before adjustment for
discounting, compared with a reduction of £1 8m n 2010
In addition the results for 2011 included £0 1m of
dilapidations and other costs atinbutable to the termination
of leases compared with £2 4m in 2010

Cost of sales for 2011 included £5 4m of costs recogrised
on censtruction of Riverside South 2010 included £10 4m
of costs recognised on pre sold properties and was stated
net of a release of £5 Om of surplus accruals relating to
properties completed In prior years No profit has been
recognised on tne construction contract entered into
connection with the sale of Riverside South although the
potential surplus has been taken into account In
calculating adjusted NAY (see Note 4)

Net development, rental and related income for 2011 was
£243 8m, a reduction of £59m compared with 2010,
attributable 1o the factors referred to above

In addition to its share of the operating losses of the joint
venture entitres ;m which it has invested n the year totalling
£0 3m, the Group has recognised s share of the
revaluation surplus recorded on 20 Fenchurch Street
totalling £7 6m which has been classified as a capital and
other item This compared with an impasrment release of
£27min 2010

Administrative expenses for 2011 were £436m In
companson with £38 6m for 2010 The increase In
administrative expenses was partly attnbutable {o the
accounting charge of £23m recognised 1n tne
Consohdated Income Statement iy connection with Canary
Wharf Group's share allocatton to employees (see Note 25)
which vested in June 2011 There was also an increase N
professional fees in the year, principally relating to Canary
Wharf Group's invesiments These items were partly offset
by a reduction in Canary Wharf Group's other payroll costs

Songbirc Estates plc

Underlysng operating profit {(as defined in Note 4) for 2011
was £207 4m in companson with £268 4m for 2010 Gf the
reduction of £610m, £33 8m was atinbutable to the
reduction In recognrised rental income and £5 0m to the
tming of profit recognmition on pre sold property The
increase In admunistrative expenses of £5 1m and the
reduction i income from the termnation of leases of
£15 9m also contnbuted to the fall

A net revaluabon suwrplus of €63 7m {(Note 6) was
recogrsed In ithe Consolidated Income Statement in the
year comparsd with £327 9m in 2010 The changes in the
valuation of the property porifolio are expiained mn more
detall in Business Review —~ Valuations

In December 2010, Carary Wharf Group completed 1lhe
disposal of 25 Bank Street for a gross consideration of
£495 Om which resulted in a profit of £155 1m (Note 11) In
conjunction with the sale of 25 Bank Street, Canary Wharf
Group agreed terms with AIG for the terminaton of the
rental cover fachty on this bulding for a net receipt of
£144 5m

Total operating profit for 2011 was £278 7 compared with
£848 5m n 2010 The reduction was alinbutable to
revaluation movements, the sale of 25 Bank Street and
settlernent with AIG, together with the other factors referred
o above

Underlying net financing costs (Note 7) for 2011 were
£202 8m agamnst £239 6m for 2010 The reduction In
underlying net mterest payable of £36 8m was primanly
attributable to a reduction in interest payable following the
repayment of the Shareholder Loan and of loans secured
against the bulldings located at 5 Churchili Place and at 10
Cabot Square and 20 Cabot Square This was partly offset
by interest payable on the £92 3m [oan facility secured
against 50 Bank Street which was drawn down in June
2011 Investment revenues also reduced in 2011 {ollowing
the repayment in October 2010 of the Drapers Gardens
conslruction loan faciity which was acquired by Canary
Wharf Group in January 2010

Net financing costs classified as capital and other tems
include movements 1n the market value of dervative
financial instruments and, 1n 2010, losses recorded on the
repurchase of debi Movements on dervative financial
Instruments and interest payable on the Preference Shares,
but excluding the repurchase of debl resulied in a net cost
of £288 7m being recogmsed in the Consolidated Income
Statement in 2011 compared with £127 1m in 2010

In 2010 the loan facility secured against the bulldings at 10
Cabot Square and 20 Cabot Square was repaid Costs
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including breakage costs ncurred on closing out the
associated nterest rate swap, tees and accounting
adjustments {compnsing the wrie off of unamortised
deferred fees and the recycling of the unamoriised
balance on the hedging reserve) resulted in a charge to
the Consolidated Income Staterment of £18 Om which was
classified as a capilal and other item

The loss for the year before tax for 2011 was £212 8m 1n
comparison with a profit of £463 8m for 2010 The resulis
for 2011 and 2010 included certain capital and other
profils and losses as descnbed above Underiying profit
before tax for 2011 was £4 6m (2010 — £28 8m)

Tax for 2011 taken to the Consolidated Income Statement
comprnised a corporaton tax charge of £0 Tm and a
deferred tax credit of £128 8Bm The deferred tax credit 1s
primarily attrnbutable to EZAs clamed in pnor penods as
disclosed in the Tax section of this Business Review In
2010 tax comprnsed a corporation tax charge of €35 7m
and a deferred tax charge of £7 2m

The loss for the year after tax for 2011 was £84 1m in
comparnson with a profit of £420 Sm for 2010

The basic and diluted losses per share {(Note 4) for 2011
was 90p (2010 - earnings of 413p) There were no
adjustments required in respect of dilutive instruments at
either 31 December 2011 or 31 December 2010

TAX

In both 2011 and 2010, EZAs and plant and machinery
capial allowances sheltered a small part of taxable profits

The contingent tax payable if Canary Wharf Group was to
dispose of its owned property porticlio at the rnarket values
disclosed in this Business Review s mncluded n the
revaluation surplus component of the net deferred tax
balance recognised at each balance sheet date

Curing the year, the Group released a deferred tax hability
of €72 1m in relation to previocus EZA clams as these
amaunts can no longer be claimed back upon dispesal of
the relevant property interest

The tax position of the Group is further disclosed m Note 8

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Net assets in the Group’s Consohdated Balance Sheet
were £1,653 4m at 31 December 2011 in companson with
£18856m at 30 June 2011 and £17536m al
31 December 2010 The reduction in net assets over the
year was pnmarnily attnbutable to the loss after tax for the
year of £84 1m which includes revaluation movements on
the property portfohe and on denvative financial
instruments The reduction i net assets since 30 June
2011 was attnbutable to the loss in the second half of the
year of £219 4m which was primanly atinbutable to an
adverse movermnent in the fair value of denvatives and the
reduction n the valuation of the property portfolic

The Companys objective 15 to manage :its investment 1n
Canary Wharl Group so as lo maximise net asset vaiue
from s mnvestment properties and property development,
although the Group 1s Impacted by movements in the wider
property market The Board considers that the most
appropniate indicator of the Group's performance s
adjusted NAV per share attnbutable to members of the
Company This measure serves to capture the Beards
judgements concerning, Inter aha, leting strategy
redevelopment and financial structure

Adjusted NAV per share includes the valuation surplus on
construction contracts but exciudes deferred tax and far
valug adjusiments on denvatives Adjusted NAV per share
increased from £1 87 at 31 December 2010 to £1 980 at
31 December 2011 an increase of 3p or 1 6% per share
attnibutable to the factors noted above

Adjusted NAV per share reduced by 4p per share or 2 1%
from £1 94 at 30 June 2011
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The calculation of adjusted NAV per share 1s set out In Note 4 Adjusted NNNAV per share 1s set cut in the jollowing table

31 December 20 Jure 31 December

2011 2011 2010

Note £m £m £m

Adjusted net assets attribuiable to members of the Company (1} 1,452.1 1.484 9 1,4297
Farr value adiustment in respect of financial assets and labiies

net of tax thereon () (476.5) (182 6) (229 7)

Deferred tax () 14.3 {69 2) (109 6)

Nen controling interest In above adjustments 141.6 796 104 3

Adjusted NNNAV 1,131.5 1,305 7 1,194 7

Adjusted NAV per share (1), (1v) £1 80 £194 £187

Adjusted NNNAV per share (v) £148 €171 £1 56

Note
{ Referto Nowe 4

(m Cornpnses the mark to market of dervatives n N2te 4 and the after tax difference between the market vatue and book value of dett disclosed in Note 21

{n) Refer tn Note 8

{wv) Caleutation hased on 764 8m Crdinary Shares i issue at 31 December 2011 30 June 2011 and 31 Decermber 2010

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Centinuous monitoring of the principal nsks  and
uncertainties facing the business of the consolidated
Group 15 underiaken through regular assessment and
formal quarterly reports 10 the audit committees and
boards of both the Company and Canary Wharf Group
The boards and audrt committees of the Group focus on
the nsks identifled as part of the Groups systems of
internal control which highhght, amongst others, key risks
iaced by the Group and allocate specific day to day
moenitering and control responsibiities as appropnate The
current key nsks of the consoldated Group include the
cyclical nature of the property market, financing nsk,
concentration risk and policy and planning risks

Concentration risk

The majanty of the Group's real estate assets are currently
located on or adjacent to the Estale with a majonty of
tenants linked o the financial services industry Wherever
possible steps are taken to mitigate or avoid matena!
consequences ansing from this concentration and to
diversify the tenant base Although the focus of the Group
has been on and around the Estate, where value can be
added Canary Wharf Group will also consider
opportunities elsewhere and 1 now nvolved In joint
vertures developing 20 Fenchurch Street and the Shell
Centre

Cychcal nature of the property market

The valuation of the Group’s assets 15 subject 1o many
external economic and market factors The turmoil in the
tnancial markeis in recent yeass has been reflected in the
property market by such factors as a significant decline in

tenant demand for space in London, the oversupply of
avallable space In the office market and changing market
perceptons of property as an investment resuling N
fluctuations of property vatuations in general Fears of an
oversupply of available space in the market have, however,
been mijigated by the difficulty in securing finance for
speculative development and reduced demand The
market has also been assisted by the continuing presence
of overseas nvestors attracted by the relative transparency
of the real estate market In London which 1s viewed as both
stable and secure Changes in financial and property
markets are kept under constant review so that the Group
can react appropnalely and tador the business plans of the
Group accordingly While the Group has no direct
exposure to the Euro, the ongoing uncertainty reflecting
ISSUES IN the macroeconomy, particularly relating to the
Eurozone, conbinues to impact the real estate market The
impact of these uncertamties 1s closely monitored

Financing risk

The broader economic cycle nevitably leads to
movements in inflation, interest rates and bond yields The
Group hnances ils operations largely through a mixture of
surplus cash, secured borrowing and debentures The
Group borrows at both fixed and floating rales and uses
interest rate swaps or caps to modify exposure to interest
rate fluctuations Alfter taking account of mterest rate
hedging all of the Groups facilities are fixed long erm
loans

The ongong financial markess' uncertanty continues to
significantly imit the availabihity of funding In cormmon with
other UK property companies, such lack of financing
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facilies may have an impact on the business of the Group
if the lending markets remain mited for the foreseeable
future

The Board continues to monitor the financial markets
with the am of identfying an approprate financing
arrangement for the Company The weighted average
maturity of the Group's loans excluding the Preference
Shares 1s 14 9 years Further detail on the management of
treasury fisk can be found in the Business Review -
Treasury objectives and Note 21 which includes a
summary of the key financial covenants applicable to each
of the Group's facilities

At 31 December 2011 £275 Om of Preference Shares were
nassue The nghts attaching to the Preference Shares are
chisclosed in Note 23

Policy and planning nisks

All of the Group’s assets are currently located withan
London Appropriate contact 1s maintained with local and
national government, bui changes in governmental policy
on planning or tax could limit the ability of the Group to
maximuse the long term potential of its assets These nsks
are closely monstored

TREASURY OBJECTIVES

The principal objectives of the Group's treasury function
are to ensure the avatlabihty of finance io meet the Group's
current and anticipated requirements and to minimise the
Group’s cost of capital The treasury function operates as a
cost centre rather than a profit centre and does not engage
in the trading of financeal iInstruments

The Group's financial instruments, other than denvatives,
comprise borrowings, cash and hquid resources, and
varous items such as trade iecewvables and trade
payables that arise directly from its operavons The Group
enters into denvative transactions (principally interest rate
swaps and caps) only in order to manage the interesi rate
nsk ansing from the Group's vanable rate borrowings
Details of the financial neks facing the Group are disclosed
earher m thus section and In Note 21

BORROWINGS

In June 2013, Canary Wharf Group entered into a £92 3m
5 year faciity secured against 50 Bank Street The facility
carnes interest at 3 months LIBOR pius a margin of 2 0%
The exposure to movements in LIBOR s fully hedged at an
all in rate including margins of 4 415%

In December 2011, Canary Wharf Group entered into a
£180 Om development loan facility to jund the construction
of a new bulding at 25 Churchill Place No amounts had

heen drawn down aganst this faciity at 31 December
2011 The facility carnes interest at 3 month LIBOR plus a
margin of 300 bps unul rent commencement, following
which the margin may drop to 250 bps or 225 bps, subject
to satisfaction of certain interest cover tests The loan I1s
also subject 1o a maximum LTV covenant of 65 0% and 1s
repayable in December 2016 Finance costs incurred on
this loan dunng the construction penod will be capitalised
as part of the cost of construction of the building

Also in December 2011, Canary Whart Group restructured
its finance lease obligation by acquinng the finance lessor
company at a cost of £424m The effect of this
restructuring 1s that Canary Wharf Group has extinguished
s finance lease hrabifity A total cost of £1 Om has been
recognised on the transaction, comprising fees of £0 2m
and an adjusiment to the carrying value of the finance
lease hability of £0 8Bm These costs have been taken 1o the
Consolidated Income Statement and form part of net
financing costs in Underlying profit The restructunng was
funded by releasing £42 4m of cash which was previously
held as collateral against the finance lease lability

As par! of the Company's reiinancing in 2009, the
Company issued £275 0m of Preference Shares which
carry a quarterly coupon of 25% payable In arrears
During the year the Company pad outstanding
Preferential Dividends totalling £35 0Om, including £6 9m
accrued at 31 December 2010 The nghis attaching to the
Preference Shares are disclosed in Note 23

Al 31 December 2011 net debt (including dervative
financial instrurments at fair value net of monetary deposits
and cash and cash equivalents) stood at £3.216 3m, an
increase of £338 9m from £2877 4Am at 31 December
2010 The components of net debt are shown in Note 21

The increase n total borrowmngs. including derivatives
from £3,990 7m to £4,216 3m reflects the movemenis on
loans referred to above and movements in the fair value of
the Group's derivatives, partly offset by scheduled
amortisation under Canary Wharf Group's secuniisation
and other secured debt

The increase in total borrowings was accompanied by a
reduction in cash and cash equrvalents from £1,108 2m to
£996 1m The reduction 1n cash was primarily attnbutable
to the investments in joint veniures offset In part by loan
draw downs

At 31 December 2011, the Group’'s weighted average cost
of debt was 6 2% including credit wraps, but excluding the
coupon on the Preierence Shares (31 December 2010 —
6 3%} The Group borrows at both fixed and iloating rates
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and uses Interest rate swaps or caps to moddy exposure to
interest rate fluctuations All of the Group's facihies are
fixed after taking account of interest rate hedging

CASH FLOW

Cash generaied from operaiing actvities for 2011 was
£254 0m 1n comparison with £348 9m for 2010 This
reduction was pnmarily attnbutable to ithe settlement in
2010 with AIG of £144 5m together with a reduction In net
proceeds from construction contracts and working capital
movements Operating cash flows 1n 2011 included
£131 4m of proceeds and £4 7m of costs on construction
contracts compared with £32 9m and £30 3m respectively
for 2010 Excluding the impact of constructon contracts,
cash generated from operations reduced from £346 3m to
£247 3m Corporation tax of £2 1m was paid in the year
whereas £5 4m was paid in 2010

Cash flows from investing activiies resulted n a cash
outflow of £859m for 2011 compared with an inflow of
£516 9m for 2010 In 2011 the cash outflow included
£22 7m of development expenditure on properties to be
retained by Canary Wharf Group and mnvestment in
associates of £60 9m which included the nvestment in the
Shell Centre and the acquistion of Ballymore's interests In
Wood Wharf ia 2010 cash inflows included €470 Om of
proceeds {rom the sale of 25 Bank Street and £190 Om
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from the sale of 5 Churchill Place These inflows in 2010
were partly offset by £127 5m of development expenditure
and a net Investment In associates of £15 2m including the
mitial investment mn 20 Fenchurch Strest

Cash flows from financing actwities for 2011 resulted In an
outflow of £37 2m compared with £550 8m for 2010 The
2011 cash flows included £92 3m before fees drawn down
on the loan facility secured aganst 50 Bank Sireet, offset
by £66 Om of scheduled amortisation on Canary Whart
Group’s secunuisaton and other secured debt £42 4m
pard to restructure the finance lease obligaton and a
213 8m dividend paid by Canary Whari Group io is
minority shareholders 1together with £7 3m on the
acquisition of Ordinary Shares by the Trust 2010 included
the repayment of the loan facility secured on 10 Cabot
Square and 20 Cabot Square of £348 7m and the
repurchase of the Shareholder Loan for £1350m net of
draw downs during the year under this facility totalling
£232m 2010 also included the repayment of £123 5m
drawn on the 8 Churchill Place construction lpan facility
and £77 2m of scheduled amortisation on Canary Wharf
Group's secuntisation and other secured loans, together
with the £23 1m dividend paid by Canary Wharf Group to
its minonty shareholders These cash flows were partly
offset by the £135 Om net proceeds from the Open Offer
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Directors’ Report

or the year ended 31 December 2011

The directors present therr report with the audited
consolidated financal statements for 2011

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal actwvity of the Company is the management
of its investment In iis main subsidiary Canary Wharf
Group plc which s the holding company for Canary Wharf
Group which specialises in  integrated property
development, investmen! and management focusing
prnmanly on the Estaie and Central London

A detailed review of the business of the Group during the
year and of its position at 31 December 2011 can be
found in the Charrmans Operational Review and the
Business Review which are lo be ireated as being part of
this Directors’ Report The prnincipal nsks ang uncertainties
identfied for the Group are summansed n the Business
Review - Principal nisks and uncertanties together with
measures of the Group's performance by reference to
appropnate key performance indicators {Business Review
- Consoldated balance sheel and key performance
indicators)

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Detalls of events after the balance sheet date are shown in
Note 29

RESULTS AND VALUATIONS

The resulis for the year aie set out In the Consohdated
Income Statement Changes in the market value of land
and buldings durning 2011 are reviewed in the Business
Review - Valuations

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

In accordance with the Articles, holders of the Preference
Shares are enttled to receive a fixed cumulative
Freferential Dividend in priority to any payment by way of
aividend or other distnbution {o the holders of any other
class of shares of the Company The Preferential Dividend
accrues from day to day commencing on the date of issue
of that share and shall be paid in cash quarterly in arrears
on 1 January Apnl July and October in each year Further
detall on the Preferential Dvidends can be found in Note
24 A Preferential Dividend of €6 Sm was declared on
29 March 2012 for payment on 30 March 2012

The loss of £68 1m (2010 — profit £277 8m) atinbutable to
the members of the Company has been iransferred to
reserves No dividends were declared during the year
ended 31 December 2C11 other than the dmvidencs in
respect of the Preference Shares

GOING CONCERN

The Groups husiness activiiies together with the factors
Iikely to alfect its future development, performance and
position are set out elsewhere in the Business Review The
finances of the Group, its hquidhty position and berrowing
faciliies are descrnbed in the Business Review -
Borrowings and the nsks faced by the Group are set out In
the Business Review — Prnincipal nsks and uncertainties
and Note 21

The Group has considerable financial resources and at
31 Decemper 2011 Canary Whart Group had cash
balances totalling £988 5m of which £853 5m was
unsecured In addition Canary Wharf Group enjoys the
benefit of leases with a weighted average unexpired lease
term of 149 years assuming the exercise of all break
opticns, and the average maturty of the Group's debt at
31 December 2011 was 13 9 years At 31 December 2011
the occupancy level was 96 5% Accordingly the directors
believe that the Group 15 well placed to manage s
business rnsks successfully despite the continuing
uncertain ecocnomic climate

Having made the requisite enquiries, the directors have a
reasonable expectaton that the Company and the Group
will have adequate resources to continue their operations
for the foreseeable fuiure and, therefore continue to adopt
the going concern basis It preparnng the Report and
Financial Statermenis

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

At the date of this report, 76 33% of the 1ssued Orclinary
Share capital of the Company was held by the Significant
Shareholders with the remaining 23 67% held publcly All
of the Ordinary Shares are listed on AIM
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At 31 December 2011, the Company had been notified of
the following disclosable interests of 4 0% or more In the
Ordinary Shares of the Company

No of Issued

shares capiial

%

Qatar Holding 211,746,156 27 68
Glick Shareholders® 191,981 865 2510
Land Breeze'’ 116,988,095 1529
MS Shareholders'™ 63,155 790 826

Note

{1 Also holds 150 Om Preference Shdres and bas an nierest in Warrants
representing 8 543 857 voling nghls in 1ssue

{(n) Investment vehicles and trusts connected with Simon Gick and hig
famity Also have nterests in Warants representing 8 543 857 voting
nghts (N Issue

(ny A wholly owned subsidary of CIC Alsc nolds 125 Om Preference
Shares and has an interes! 1 Warrants representing 10 893 419 of the
current votng nghts in 1ssue

(v} Comprises varous MSREF Funcds and the MSRE| Fund Also have
intgrests 0 Warrants recresenting 854,384 votng nights in issug Cn
26 March 2012 MS Shareholders owned 86 737 084 Ordnary Shares
of the comzany compns ng B 72% of the Ordinary Share Capuat

DIRECTORS

The following directors served on the Board throughout the
year

Dawvid Pritchard

John Botts

Faisal Al-Hamad

Khalfa Al-Kuwan

Sheikh Mohammed Bin Hamad 8in Jassim Al-Thani
Peter Harned

Jonathan Lane

Sam Levinson

Alex Midgen

Brian Niles

In accordance with the Articles. Dawvid Pritchard and John
Bolis as independent directors of the Company will retire at
the forthcoming annual general mesting and offer
themselves for reappaniment On 28 March 2012, the
Giick Shareholders exercised therr nght to designate a
thrd dwector, Oawd P O'Connor to the Board
Biographical details for all the directors are prowided in
Shareholders' Information

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Sam Levinson has direct and indirect relatonships with the
Glick Shareholders and accordingly, has an nterest n
191,881,865 Ordinary Shares of the Company, betng the
Ordinary Shares held by the Glick Shareholders Sam
Levinson also has an winterest in the Warrants held by

Songbird Estates plc

Chichester Fund Limited which represent 8,543,857 voting
nghts in Issue

None of the remaining direciors, or ther families, had a
beneticial interest in the shares of the Company or any of
s subsidiary companies dunng the year All of the
directors are non executive directors and the Company
has not, therefore adopted any share plan for the benefit
of its directors

Except as stated in Note 28 of the Notes to the
consclidated financial statements, no other contract
subsisted during the year in relaton to the business of the
Company 1n which any director was materally mierested

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual
report and the financial statements In accordance with
applcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year The directors are
required by the AIM rules to prepare the Group financial
statements under IFRS as adopted by the Eutopean Union
and have elected 10 prepare the Company financial
statements under UK GAAP The financial statements are
also requied by law to be properly prepared n
accordance with the Act

International Accountng Standard 1 requires that IFRS
financial statements present farly for each financial year
the Group's financial positien, financial performance and
cash flows This requires the faithful represeniation of the
effecis of iransachons, other events and conditions mn
accordance with the defintions and recognition catena for
assets habihties, income and expenses set out in the
Internatonal Accounting Standards Board's Framework for
the preparation and presentation of financial statements {n
virtually all crrcumstances, a farr presentaton will be
achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs
Directors are, however, also required to

* properly select and apply accounting palicies,

* present Information, iIncluding accounting policies, N a
manner that provides relevant, relable, comparable
and understandable information,

* provide addibonal disclosures when comphance with
the specific reguirements in the IFRSs are insufficient
1o enable users to understand the impact of partcular
transactons, other evenis and condiions on the
entity’s financial position and financial perfermance,
and
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Songbird Estates plc

DlreCtOl’S' Report continued

for the year ended 31 December 2011

* make an assessment of the Companys and the
Group's abilty to continue as a going concern

The directors have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements 1N accordance with UK GAAP and
apphcable law The Company financial statements are
reguired by law to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company In prepanng these financial
statements the direciors are required to

* select suitable accounting polcies and then apply
them consistently,

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

* state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any materal
departures disclosed and explained in the financal
staiements, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless 1t 1s nappropnate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial posttion of the Group
and enable them to ensure that the Company financial
statements comply with the Act The drrectors are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularinies

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and
Integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Companys website Legslation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financiat statements may differ from legisiation 1n other
jurisdictions

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

The Company provides an indemnity to all directors of the
Company and its associated companies (as defined in
Section 256(b) of the Act) 10 the extent permitted by law,
tn respect of liabihves incurred as a result of therr office
The indemnity was in force during the year ended
31 December 2011 and at the time of the approval of thig
Drirectors' Report The Group also has i place hability
insurance covering the direciors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiary undertakings Neither the
indemnity or the insurance provige cover in the event that
the director 1s proved io have acted dshonestly or
fraudulentty

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Due to the concentrated shareholder base and
shareholder representation on the Board t 1 not practical
for the Company to comply with all of the principles of the
Quoted Companies Allance corporate governance
guidelines for AIM Companies However, the directors are
mindful of therr dutes and responsibiliies to  all
shareholders The directors are aware of ther statutory
duties under the Act and, in particular, the core duty o act
in good fath and in a way most lkely to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of 1s members as
a whoie

The following prninciples of corporate govarnance apply

* The Board includes 2 independent directors who must
retire and stand for reapponiment at each annual
general meeting,

* The Board meets at least 4 tmes a year and has
formally adopted a schedule of powers which are
reserved to the Board

* The Board has full and timely access to all relevant
miormation to enable It to discharge its duties
effectively

e {Committees of the Board, which have adopted
formalsed terms of reference have been established
to deal with the day to day matters of the Board and
specilic areas of responsibility All of the committees
terms of reference are subyect to annual review,

* A jormal process has been adopted by the Board to
manage directors' conflicts of interest,

* Independent advisers have been appointed by the
Company,

e All directors have direct access to the advice and
services of the company secretary and are able (0 seek
independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company If required in connection with ther duties,

s Formal agreements are in place between the
Company Significant Shareholders (as appropriate)
and ther assoctates and Canary Wharf Group in
relation {o the dissermination of information, provision of
services and consultancy arrangements,

*  The Board retans responsibility for the mantenance of
a sound system of internal control for the Company
and its wholly owned subsidianies and for reviewing its
effectiveness All risks identfied by this process have
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been reviewed and amended as appropriate to reflect
the current market concitions, and

* A share dealing code has been adopted by the
Company

Committees

Announcement Audit and Executive Commitiees have
been established with formally delegated duties and
responsibiliiies  Formal terms of reference for ali
3 committees have been adopted by the Board

The Announcement Committee which has 2 members, In
addition to the Chairman meets as required {0 consider
information that should or may be required to be
disseminated to ihe market having regard i the
Companys and ihe directors’ continuing obligations The
Announcement Commuttee 1s chaired by Dawvid Pritchard

The Audil Committee meetls at least 4 times a year and has
at least 2 members, In addition to the chairman, whe are
not members of the Canary Wharf Group Audit Commuttee
The audior 1s mvited to Audil Commitiee meetings
on a regular basis The Audit Commitiee 15 chared by
John Botis

The Executive Committee comprises 3 Significant
Shareholder appointed directors and the Charrman Whilst
it formally has powers o oversee the mplementaton of
dectsions of the Board this committee did not meet dunng
the 12 month penod ending 31 December 2011 as all
matters delegated o it have been dealt with by the
Board

Conflicts of interest

A formal process to manage directors’ conflicts of interest
has been adopted by the Board and provides a framework
within which the directors who are not conflicted can
manage potenttal conflict situations to protect the nterests
of the Company This process 1s operating effectively and
an annual review 1s conducted of the conflicts discilosed
during the preceding i2 months m order to dentfy any
necessary changes required 1o the process

POLICIES
Corporate Responsibility

Due to the nature of the Company's business, being the
management of its iInvestiment in Canary Wharf Group, and
Its management siruclure i1 1s not {easible for the Company
io adopt an environmenial and social policy i its own night
However, the directors are conscious of enviracnmental and
social issues and adhere, as appropriate, to Canary Whart
Group s erwironmental and social pelicies in this area

Songbird Estates plc

Canary Whart Group s committed 1o applying
environmental best practice wherever practical n the
design, consiruction and management of the Canary
Whart Estate and to properties sifualed elsewhere tor the
benefit of the environment, tenants, employees, the
community and stakeholdsrs A summary of the Canary
Wharf Group Environmental Policy 1s set out below and the
full Environmental Policy 1s avallable on the websiie
www canarywharf com

Canary Wharf Group targets the reduction of energy, water
and resource use, and the reuse and the recycling of waste
where possible during the design, construction and
management of properties The minimisation of disruption
and disturbance {o the environment and local community 1s
also targeted dunng the construction and management of
buldings Canary Wharf Group 1 also committed o
preventing and monitoring pollubion and to reducmng any
emissions which may have an adverse mpact on the
envircnment and/or tocal community

Canary Wharf Group endeavours to raise awareness and
promote effective management of erwvironmenial and
social 1ssues with staff designers suppliers and
contractors and works with suppliers and contractors to
estabhsh effective enwvironmenial  supply chan
management and to promote the procurement of
sustainable products and matenals Canary Wharf Group
works with other parties to identify key environmental and
social 1ssues and to share solutions and best practice in
managing environmental impact

tnformation on Canary Wharf Group's environmental and
corporate responsibiity performance 1s published annually
with third party verificaton

Employment

As neither the Company, nor its wholly owned subsidianes,
have employees an employment policy has not been
adopted by the Company However, Canary Whart Group
has adopted a detaded employment policy, details of
which can be found in the report and financial siatements
of Canary Wharf Group

Treasury

Details of the Group's treasury objectives and financial
risks together with the farr value of the Group's debt and
the poswon under its lending covenants can be found in
Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

Payment of suppliers

It 15 the Groups policy to settle the terms of payment with
its supplers when agreeing the terms of each transaction
to ensure that suppliers are made aware of, and then to
abide by the terms of payment

2011 Report & Financial Statements 19




Songtard Estates plc

Directors’ Report coninuead

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Further disclosure on consolidated trade and other
payables can be found in Note 17 {0 the consolidated
financial statements and on the Company only trade
creditors in Note (i) to the Company financial statements

DONATIONS

No poltical donations or expenditure (as defined by the
Aci) or chantable donations were made by the Company
during 2010 or 2011

Canary Whari Group made charntable donations of
£448,896 1n 2011 (2010 — £576,455), primarily in support of
focal commumity intiatives For 2010 this included
£250,000 contributed to the lIsle of Dogs Community
Foundation under the terms of the Section 106 agreement
for Riverside South

Political donations (as cdefined by the Act and which
include donations in kind) made by Canary Wharf Group
during the year comprised £57,367 to the Conservative
Party £16,657 to the Labour Party and £13,958 to the
Liberal Democrat Party (2010 - £47 571 to the Labour
Party, £13 000 to the Conservative Party and £3,435 to the
Liberat Democrat Paity) Canary Whart Group did not incur
any poltical expenditure (as defined by the Act) In either
2011 or 2010

AUDITOR AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATIONTO
AUDITOR

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP as the Company’s
auchtor will be proposed at the annual general meeting

So far as the directors are aware there 1s no retevant audit
information of which the audior s unaware Each director
has taken all reasonable steps to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be mterpreted in
accordance with the provisions of s418(2) of the Act

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held at 200 pm on
Tuesday 23 May 2012 at 10 Upper Bank Street Canary
Wharf London E14 5JJ

By orcler of the Board

JOHN GARWOOD
Secretary

Soengbird Estales plc
Registered number 5043352

29 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Songbird Estates pic

to the Members of Songbird Estates plc

We have audied the Group financial statements of
Songbird Estates ple for the year ended 31 December
2011 which compnse the Consolidated Income Statement,
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
the Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equity the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and the related notes 1 to 29 The financral
reporting framework that bas been appled in ther
preparation 1 applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Urion

This report 1s made solely 1o the Companys members, as
a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Aci 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required 10 state to thermn in an auditors
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiity to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for thus
report, or for the opirons we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITOR

As explaned more fully in the Drrectors’ Responsibilibes
statement included within the Directors' Report, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group
hinancial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and farr view Cur responsibility 1g to audit and express
an opinton on the Group financial statements m
accordance with apphcable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Eoard's
(APB's) Ethical Standards for Audhtors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statemenis
are free from maienal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropraie to the Group's
circumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the direciors, and the
overall presentation of the financial statements In addition
we read all the financial and non financial iInformation n the
Annual Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the

audied financial statements If we become aware of any
apparent matenal misstatements or inconsisiencies, we
consider the implications for our report

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our apinion the Group financial statements

* give a true and farr view of the state ot the Group's
affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of its loss for the
year then ended,

= have been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopied by the European Union, and

* have been presared n accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE
COMPANIES ACT 2006

in our opinion the information given in the Directors Report
far the financial year for which the financial staiements are
prepared Is consistent with the Group financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Compamies Act 2006 requires us to
repori tc you if, In our opinion

* certain dsclosures of directars’ remuneration
specified by law are not made or

* we have not recewed all the mformaton and
explanalions we require for our audit

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately on the parent company
financial statements of Sengbird Estates plc for the year
ended 31 December 2011

Moo Baddy

Mark Beddy (Senior Statuiory Audiior)

for and on behalf of Deioite LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statuiory Auditor
London, UK

29 March 2012
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Songbird Eslales plc

Consolidated Income Statement

ior the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Capital Capital
Underlying* and other Total Underiying ~ and other Total
MNote £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross development, rental
and related income 5 352.3 - 352.3 4097 {50 1) 359 6
Cost of sales (108 5) - (108 5) {109 9) - (109 9)
Net development, rental
and related income 5 243.8 - 243.8 209 8 {50 1) 2487
Share of associates and
joint ventures after tax 12 (0.3) 7.6 7.3 02) 27 25
Administrative expenses (43.6) - (43.6) (32 8) - (38 6)
Other income 7.5 - 7.5 74 - 74
Net revaluation movements 6 - 63.7 63.7 - 3279 3279
Profit on sale of investment
property i1 - - - - 1551 15651
Termination of AlG facility 21 - - - - 144 5 144 5
Operating profit 2 207.4 713 278.7 ’68 4 580 1 8485
Net financing costs
— investment revenues 7 7.9 - 79 258 - 258
- financing costs 7 {210.7) (288 7) (459 4) (265 4) (127 1) {392 5}
— debt repurchase costs 7 - - - - (180) (18}
(202 8) (288 7) (491 5) (239 6) (145 1) {384 7)
Profit/(loss) for the year
before tax 46 (217 4) {212 8) 288 4350 4638
Tax 8 1287 {42 9}
(Loss)/profit for the year
after tax 4 (84 1) 4209
Attributable to
Equity holders of the
Company (68 1) 2778
Non controlling interest (16 D) 1431
(84 1} 4209
(Losses)earnings
per share
— basic and diluted 4 (9.0)p 41 3p

* As defined In Notes 1(y) and 4
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2011

20611 200
£m £m
{Loss)/profit after tax (84.1) 4209
Transferred from equity in respect of cash fiow hedges 92 44 4
Tax on items transferred from equity {including change in tax rate) (4 9) {(137)
43 307
Total comprehensive income for the year (79 8) 45186
Aftnibutable to
Equity holders of the Company (65.1) 299 1
Nor controlling interest (14.7) 16256
(79.8) 4516
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Cancelled Total Non
Share  Treasury sharé  Hedging other controling  Retained Share
preriurm shares reserve reserve  reserves  Inierests  earnings capital Total
£m £m £m £m m £m £m £m £m
1 January 2010 1,071 0 (9 4) 595 (82 0y 1,033 1 5126 (4197) 6586 1,1916
Prolit tor the year after tax - - - - - - 4209 - 4209
Net income recognised - - - - - - 4209 - 4209
Transferred to non controlling nterests - - - (9 4) (8 4) 1525 (143 4} - -
Transterred to iIncome
- cash flow hedges - - - 44 4 a4 4 - - - 444
Tax on transfors - - - (137} (137) - - ~ (137
Total comprehensive Income
and expense for the year - - - 213 213 1525 2778 - 4516
Issuc of Ordinary Share
capilal (net of expenses) 124 1 - - - 1241 - - 109 1350
Reserve moverments in
tespect of treasury shares - (15) - - 15) - - - {(15)
ODividends paid by
subsidiary underiaking - - - - - (23 1) - - (23 1)
31 December 2010 1,195 1 (10 9) 595 667) 11770 6420 (141 9) 765 1,7536
Loss for the year after tax - - - - - - (B4 1} - (84 1)
Net expense recogmsed - ~ - - - - (84 1) - (84 1)
Transferred 10 nen controlling interests - - - (13) {13) (14 7) 160 - -
Transferred 10 iIncome
- cash flow hedges - - - 92 92 - - - 92
Tax on transters - - - (49) (49) - - - (49)
Total comprehensive income
and expense for the year - -~ - 30 30 (14 7) (68 1) - (79 8)
Acquisition of treasury shares - (73) - - (7 3) - - - (7 3)
Acquistion of Canary Whari
Group shares - -~ - - - (2 3) - - 23)
Reserve movements in respect
of treasury shares - 23 - - 23 ~ 07 - 30
Dadends patd by subsidiary
undertaking - - - - - (138) - - (138)
31 December 2011 1,1951 (159 595 (637) 11750 6112 {209 3) 765 1,6534

Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve

The Treasury Shares reserve represents the cost of Ordinary Shares held in Trust Details of the movements on the
Treasury Shares reserve are disclosed in Note 25

The cancelled share reserve comprises the nominal value of 601 068,076 deferred shares cancelied in 2008

The hedging reserve comprises the amounts deferred in equity under previously effective hedges which are recognised
in the Consolidated Income Statement in the same penod in which the hedged item affects net profit or loss

Retaned earmings includes inter ala, revaluation surpluses in respect of the Group's properties that are recognised
the Consolidated Income Statement
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

at 31 December 2011

Songbird Esiales plc

2011 2010
Noie £m em
Assets
Non current assets
Investment properties 11 4,509.7 4 445 5
Development properties 1 2918 268 5
Plant and equipment 11 05 10
4,802 0 47150
Other non current assets
Investrnents 12 1125 430
Tenant iIncentives and other non current assets 14 1925 193 0
Deferred 1ax B 143 -
5,121 3 49510
Current assets
Tracle anc other recewvables 13 a6 7 67 6
Monetary deposits 15 39 51
Cash and cash eguivatenis 16 996 1 1,108 2
1,046 7 1,180 8
Total assets 6,168 0 61318
Liabilittes
Current habilities
Current portion of long term berrowings 18 {93 6) (98 7)
Corporation tax 17 (52 9) (85 0)
Trade and cther payables 17 (236 1) (212 8)
(382 6) (366 5)
Non current habilities
Borrowings 19 (3,575 6) {3585 0}
Derwvative financial instruments 20 (547.1) (297 O}
Deferred tax habilibes 8 - (109 6)
Provisions 22 (9.3) (10 2)
(4,132 0) {4,011 8)
Total habilities (4,514.6) (4.378 3}
Net assets 1,653 4 1,753 6
Equity
Share capital 23 765 765
Other reserves 1,1750 1,1770
Retained earnings (209 3) (141 9)
Total equity attnbutable o members of the Company 1,042 2 1,111 6
Non coniroling interests 6112 6420
Total equity 1,653 4 17536

Approved by the Board and authonsed for issue on 29 March 2012 and signed on its behalf by

)&W PJC&M
DAVID PRITCHARD
Charrman
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Songbird Estates ple

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Note £m £m

Net cash flows from operating activities 26 2540 3489

Interest paid (245.2) (266 3)
Interest receved 7.3 257

Interest element of finance lease rentals (0.2) (05)
Ereakage costs - (40 5)
Financing expenses on new loans (4.9) -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 10 673
Cash flows from investing activities

Development expendiure {22 7) (127 5}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - (01}
Sale of investment property - 86597

Investment in and net loans to associates (60 9) (15 2}
Acquisttion of shares in Canary Wharf Group plc {2 3) -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities (85.9) 5169
Cash flows from financing activities

Dmidends paid t© minornty shareholders (13.8) (23 1}
Repayment of construction loan - (123 5)
Redemption of securitised debt (57.5) (59 D)
Redemption of secured loan (8.5) (18 2}
Draw down of secured loan 92.3 -
Repayment of secured ioans - (348 7)
Issue of Ordinary Share capital - 1400

Fees on issue of Ordinary Share capital - (5 0)
Draw down of Shareholder Loan - 232

Repurchase of Shareholder Loan - (135 0)
Acquisition of own shares (see below) (7.3) (i15)
Repayment of finance lease obligation (42.4) -

Net cash outflow from financing activities (372) (550 8)
Net (decreasel}increase in cash and cash equivalents (112 1) 334

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 1,108 2 10748

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16 996 1 11082

The acquisition of own shares in 2010 totalling £1 5m was disclosed as part of cash flows from investing activities in the
2010 Report and Financial Statements In preparing the Consoldated Cash Flow Staterment for 2011 this cash outflow
has been reclassified and now forms part of cash flows from financing activities in accordance with |1AS 7 and the cash

flow for 2010 has been reallocated accordingly
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2011

1

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The fimancial mformation presented n this report has been prepared n accordance with IFRS and IFRIC
intespretations as adopted by the EU and therefore complies with the AIM rules

The following new and revised accounting standards and interpretations have been adopted by the Group in 2011
Their adoption has not had any significant impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements but with
the exception of IFRS 1 may impact the accounting for future iransactions and arrangements

* |AS 24 (revised 2009} Related party disclosures

*  Amendments tc IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a ririmum funding requirement

* IFRIC 19 Extingwishing financial lablities with equity instruments

*  Amendment to IFRS 1 Limited exemption from comparative IFRS 7 disclosures for first time adopters
*  Amendrment to 1AS 32 Classthcation of nghts issues, and

* Improvements to IFRSs 2010

Ai the date of authorisation of these financial statements the following standards and interpretations which have not
been applied in these financial statements were In 1ssue but not yet etfective (and In some cases had not yet been
adopted by the EU)

* IFRS 1 {amended) Severe hypernflation and removal of fixed dates for first tme adopters,
* |FRS 7 {amended) Disclosures — transfers of financ:al assets,

e {FRS 9 Financial instruments

* IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statemenits,

* IFRS 11 Joint arrangermenis

« IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entives,

* IFRS 13 Fair value measurement,

* |AS i (amended) Presentation of items in other comprehensive mcome,
* 1AS 12 {amended) Deferred tax — recovery of underlying assets,

* IAS 12 {revised) Employee benefits

* IAS 27 (revised) Separate financial statements, and

* A5 28 (revised) Investments in associates and joint ventures

The directors are in the process of assessing the impaci 1f any of adopting the above standards and interpretations

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as stated in the Directors Report — Going
concern

Accounting pohicies

These financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention as modified by the revaluation
of land and burldings and certan financral nstruments A surnmary of the principal Group accounting policies, which
have been appled consistently m all matenal respects throughout the year and for the comparative year, 1s set out
below

{a) Basis of consolidation

The consohdated financial statements include the financial staierments of the Company and s subsidiaries for
the periods reporied For the purposes of prepanng these consolidated accounts, subsidianes are those entities
where the Company has control Controf exists when the Company has the power, diuectly or indirectly, 1o govern
the financial and operating policies of an enlily s0 as 10 obtan benefis from #s actvites The financial
statemments of subsidianes are included In the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date control ceases

Where there 15 a change in the Company's direct or indirect interest In a subsichary which does not alter the
classiication of the entity as a subsidiary this 1s accounted for as an equity transaction When such a change
cccurs, the carrying amounis of the controlling and non controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
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(b)

{c)

(d)

in their relative interests N the subsidiary The difference between the amount paid {or receved) and the book
value of the non controlling Interest eliminated (or recogrised) is taken directly to retained earmings

Associated undertakings and jont ventures are accounted for under the equity method whereby the
Consolidated Balance Sheet ncorporates the Groups share of the net assets of the relevant entiies The
Consolidated Income Statement incorporates the Group's share of associated and jomnt venture undertakings,
profits or tosses after tax Where the Group's share of the losses of an associaled and joint venture undertaking
exceeds the histonc cost of the Group's Investment in that entity, the investment 1s wnitten down to nil and a
provision s recognised for the Group's legal or constructive opligatons at the Consolidated Balance Sheet date
in respect of that entity An entity 1s classified as an associated undertaking when the Group has sigrnificant
nffluence over the economic activity of an undertaking but does not have control An entity 15 classified as a joint
venture where the contractual arrangement by which the Group undertook t¢ join an economic activity provides
jont control

Intra group batances and any unrealised gains and losses ansing from intra group transactions are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements

Acquisitions and business combinations

Whete properties are acauired through corporate acguisiions and there are no sigrificant assets or habilibes
other than property and related debt the acquisition is treated as an asset acquisiion In all other cases the
acquisiton s accounted for as a business combination in accordance with IFRS 3 in which case the assets and
habibties of a subsidiary joint venture or associated undertaking are measured at their estimated fair value at the
date of acquisition The results of such business combinations are included from the effective date of acquisition
to the effective date of disposal The excess of acguisition costs over the Group’s Interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and habiliies of the new entity at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwili

Investment properties and properties occupied by Canary Wharf Group

Investment properties are those properties that are held either to earmn rental Income or for caprital appreciation
or both

Froperty occupied by the Group is carned at fair value based on a professional valuation made as of each
reporting date Where the value of such property 1s not material it is included in investment properties Additions
consist of costs of a capital nature

Acquired investment properties are measured intially at cost, ncluding related transacton costs After inma)
recogmition at cost, mvestment properties are carried at their far values hased on a professional valuation made
as of each reporting date Properties are treated as acquired at the point when the Group assumes the
significant nsks and returns of ownership and as disposed when these are transferred to the buyer Additions to
nvestment properties consist of costs of a capital nature

The difference between the fair value of an investment property at the reporting date and its carrying amount
prior to remeasurement 15 Included in the Consohdated Income Statement as a valuatron gain or loss When the
Group begins to redevelop an existing investment property for continued future use as an iNvestment property
the property remaing an investment property and 1s accounted for as such

Non current assets held for sale

Non current assels classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the carrying amount and farr value
less costs to sell As investment properties are exempt from the measurerment criteria of IFRS 5 any such assets
which are classified as held for sale contnue to be carned at far value

Non current assets are classified as held for sale If ther carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use This condition 1g regarded as met only when the sale 15 highly
probable and the asset Is available for mmediate sale inits present condition Management must be commutted
to the sale which should be expected to qualfy for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date
of classification
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Development properhies and properties under construction for investment

Development properties are those properties held with the ntention to develop for future use as an Investment
property When construction commences on such development properties, they are reclassified at farr value as
a property under construction for investment Such properues are recogrised at far value at each reporting
date Any gain or loss on remeasurement Is taken direct to the Censolidated Income Statement On completion,
the property 15 transferred to investment properiies

Finance costs assoclated with direct expendilure on properties under construction to be held as an investrnent
property or undergoing major refurbishment are capitalised The interest capitalised 1s calculated using the
Groups weighted average cost of borrowings after adjusting for borrowings associated with specific
developments Where barrowings are assoctated with speciic developments, the amount capitalised 1s the
gross Interest iIncurred on those borrowings less any investment iIncome ansing on therr tempaorary invesiment
Interest 15 capitalised as from the commencement of the development work until the date of practical completion
The capitahsation of finance costs 's suspended If there are prolonged pertods when development activity 1S
interrupted

Plant and equipment

Flant and equipment comprnises computers, furniture fixtures and fittings and improvements to Group offices
These assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment, and are
depreciated on a straight ine basis over ther estmated useful lives of between 3 and 4 years

Construction contracts

Constructicn contracts consist of properties that are being constructed in accordance with long term
development contracts and for which the detasled design specification of each bulding 15 agreed with the
purchaser Where applicable the contracts are sphit inic 3 component parts sale of land, completed construction
works at the date of entering 1nto the contracts and ongoing construction contracts

Revenue on the sale of land and completed construction works 1s recognised al the pont that the significant
nsks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised according to the stage reached in the contract by reference
io the value of work completed using the percentage of completion method The percentage of completion 1s
calculated by reference to costs incurred on the buillding compared with the estimated total costs The gross
amount due compnises costs incurred plus recognised profits less the sum of recognised losses and progress
bilhngs Where the sum of recognised losses and progress billngs exceeds costs incurred plus recognised
profits, the amount 1s shown as payments on account

When it s probable that total contract costs will exceed totat contract revenue, the expected loss 1s recognised
immediately as an expense

Trade receivables

frade recewvables are recognised intially at far value A provision for imparrment 1s established where there 15
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of
the recewables concerned

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise cash bafances, deposits held with banks and ather short term nighly iquig
investments with onginal maturities of 3 months or less which are held for the purpose of meeting shert term
cash commitments

Monetary deposits

Amounts neld on deposit, which do not meet the critena to be classified as cash and cash equivalents are
classified as monetary deposits and accounted for at amortised cost
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(k) Trade and other payables

n

Trade and other payables are stated at cost

Provisions

A provision 1s recognised in the Consolidaled Balance Sheet when the Group has a present obligation as a result
of a past event and 1t 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obhgation |f
the effect 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expecled future cash flows at a pre tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific
to the hability

(m) Borrowings

(n)

(o)

)]

Borrowings are recognised initially at far value less attnbutable transaction costs Subsequent 1o inhial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount inibally recognised
and redemption value being recognised in the Consolidated Income Siatement over the penod of the
borrowings  using the effective mterest method

The eftective interest methad 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial hability andg of allocating
Interest expense over the relevant pernod The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash flows {(iIncluding all fees that form an integral part of the effective interest rate transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial iability

Warrants were 13sued in connection with the Shareholder Loan The fair value of the equity component attached
to the Warrants was assessed upon mibial recognition as neghgible by reference to the farr value of the
Shareholder Loan with which they were issued Accordingly no separate equity component was recognised in
respect of the Warrants

Pension benefits
Contributions to defined contnibution schemes are expensed as they fall due

Share capital

The Ordinary Shares are classed as equity External costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new shares are
shown in eqguity as a deduction from the proceeds

The terms of the Preference Shares require these shares to be treated as a hability and consequently they are
included in amounts payable in more than one year The costs of issuing the Preference Shares have also been
taken to borrowings and are being amortised over the term of the Preference Shares The finance cost of the
Preterence Shares 15 classified as a financing expense In the Consolidated Income Statement

The consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs by any Group entity to acguire
Treasury Shares, 1s deducted from equity untl the shares are cancelied, reissued or disposed of Where Treasury
Shares are sold or reissued, the net consideration received I1s Included In equity

Share based payments

Crdinary Shares held by the Trust may be allocated to employees under the terms of share schemes or
allocations adopted from tme to tme by Canary Wharf Group The terms of an allocaiion may, at the option of
Canary Wharf Group, allow the employee to receive a cash settlement in lieu of therr share allocation |n this
event, the cash amount recewvable by an employee 15 caiculated by reterence to the market price of the Ordinary
Shares at that date

Where the terms of an allocation permit the employee to opt for a cash setttement the allocation 1s accounted
for as a cash seltled share based payment Where the terms of the allocation allow but do not require Canary
Wharf Group 1o offer a cash seillement option to the ernployees, the allocation 1 accounted for as an equily
settled share based payment
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For cash settled share allocations, a iability s recorded by reference to the market value of the shares at each
balance sheet date The cost of equity settied share allocations 1s measwed at the grant date and based on the
market value of the Ordinary Shares at that date The associated cost 1s charged to the same expense category
as the employment cost of the relevant employee, spread on a straight Iine basis over the relevant vesting
perniod, based on Canary Wharf Group s estmate of shares that will eventually vest

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recewvable and is stated net of discounts
and VAT

Revenue compnses rental ncome, service charges and other recovenes from tenants of the Group's properies
and income ansing on long term contracts Service charges and other recoveries include chrectly recoverable
expenchiture together with any chargeable management fees and are recognised as they fall due

Revenue from construction contracts 1s recognised in accordance with the Groups accounting pohlcy on
construction contracts

Rental income from investment property leased out under an operating lease 1s recogrised in the Consolidated
Income Stalerment an a straight line basis over the ierm of the lease Lease incentives granted, including rent
free perods, are recognised as an integral part of the net consideration for the use of the property and are
therefore also recognised on the same siraight ine basis An adjustment 1s made to ensure that the carmying
value of the related property, Including the accrued rent, amortised lease incentives and negotiation costs, does
not exceed the external valuation

Contingent rents  heing those lease payments that are not fixed at the inception of a lease, for example turnover
rents, are recorded as income N the periods in which they are earned

Where revenue I1s obtained by the sale of assets it 1s recognised when significant nsks and returns have been
transferred to the buyer In the case of the sale of properties, this 1s on completion

Expenses

Property and centract expenditure incurred prior 1o the exchange of a contract 1s expensed as incurred

Direct costs mecurred in negotiating and arranging a new lease are amortised on a straight ine basis over the
period from the date of lease commencement 1o the earhest termination date

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The carrying amounis of the Group s non financial assets, other than investiment development and construction
property (see (c) and (e) above}, are reviewed at each reporting date to deterrmine whether there 15 any
inchication of imparrment If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount 15 estimated An
imparment loss 1s recegrused in the Consolidated Income Statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds Its recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset Is the greater of s net selling price and its value In use The value In use
1s determined as the net present value of the future cash flows expected to be derved from the asset,
discounted using a pre tax discount rate that reflecis current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset

An impairment loss 1s reversed if there has been a change In the estimaies used to determine the recoverable
amount of an asset An impanrment loss I1s reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount after the
reversal aoes not exceed the amount which would have been deterrmined, net of apphcable depreciation, if no
imparment loss had been recognised
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1

(u)

Dernvatives

The Group uses interest rate dervatives to help manage its nisk of changes in interest rates In accordance with
its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue dernvatives for trading purposes

In order for a derwative to qualify for hedge accounting the Group s required 1o document the relationship
between the item being hedged and the hedging instrument The Group 1s also required to demonstrate an
assessment of the relatonship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument which shows that the
hedge will be effective on an ongoing basis The effectiveness testing 1s performed at each Bafance Sheet date
to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective

Changes in the fair value of dervative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future
cash flows are recognised directly In the Statement of Comprehensive Income with any neffective portion
recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement If the cash flow hedge of a firm comrmitment or
iorecasted transaction resulls in the recogmition of a non financial asset or a bability, then at the time the asset
or hability 1s recogrused, the associated gawns or losses on the denvative that had previously been recognised
i equity are incluoed in the imtial imeasurement of the asset or labiity For hedges that do not resuli in the
recognition of & non financal asset or a hability, amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the Consolidated
Income Statement in the same penod in which the bedged item affects net profd or loss

Changes 1in the farr value of denvative financial instruments that do not qually for hedge accounling are
recognised In the Consolidated Income Statement as they anse

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised or
no longer qualfies for hedge accounting At that tme any cumulative gain or loss on the hadging instrument
recognised in equity 1s retained in equity until the {orecasted ransaction occurs If a hedged transaction 1s no
longer expected to occcur, the net cumulative gain of 1088 recognised i equity 18 transferred to net profit or loss
for the penocd

Denvatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate dervatives
when therr risks and characlenstics are not closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are
not carned at fair value, with gains or losses reported in the Consclhdated Income Staterment

Tax

Current tax 1s provided al amounis expected to be paid or recovered using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date

Deferred 1ax 15 provided In full using the balance sheet llability method on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and habilities for finangial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax
purposes

A deferred tax asset s regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all avallable
evidence It can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the
future reversal of the underlying temporary differences can be deducted The deferred tax eftect of far value
adjustments ansing from business combinations s incorporated in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

The deferred tax provision carried n respect of the investment property portfolio has been calculated on the
basis that the carrying amount of such properties Is recoverable through sale

No provision 1s made for temporary differences {1) ansing on the initial recogniion of assets or habilities that affect
neither accountng nor taxable profit and (i) relating to Investments N subsichanes to the extent that the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future
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Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rate that 1s expected to apply to the period when the asset 1s realised or the
hability 1s setiled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the Censoldated Income Statement except where it relates 10 items
charged or credited drectly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with 1in equity

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer subsianually afl the nsks and
rewards of ownership 10 the lessee Al other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessee

{1 Finance leases — are capitalised at the lease’'s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the asset and
the present value of the minimum lease payments Each lease payment 1s allocated between the habihty and
finance charges The corresponding rental obligations net of costs incurred n establishing the finance
lease obligation, are included i borrowings The finance charges are charged to the Consolidated Income
Statement over the lease pernod so as to produce a constant perodic rate of interest on the remamning
balance of the hability for each perod

(1} Gperating leases - payments, including prepayments, made under operating leases {(net of any ncenuves
received from the lessor) are charged to the Consclidated Income Statement on a straight line basis over
the penod of the lease

The Group as lessor

All leases operated by the Group are tested to determine whether they qualify as operating leases or finance
leases No finance leases have been dentified as a result of these tests

Operating leases — rental income from operating leases 1s recognised on a straight ine basis over the term of
the relevant lease Any incentives given tc lessees are included in Gther Non Current Assets and recognised on
a straight ine basis over the lease term Inital direct costs incurred it negeohiating and arranging an operatng
lease are deferred and recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term

Dividends

Dwidend distnbutions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised in the Group's financial statements in the
penod in which the dadends are paid or approved by the Company's shareholders

Segmental analysis

The Group 18 managed as a single entity in one geographical area with internal managemery reporting prepared
on this basis and as such has not prepared a segmental analysis (0 accordance with IFRS 8

Underlying earnings

The directors are of the opimion that analysing profit before tax between underlying earnings and capital and
other items provides additional useful nformation for members of the Company The term underlying earnings
1s not a defined term under IFRS and may not therefore be comparable with simitarly tiled profit measurements
reporied by other companes The adjustments made to reported results are as follows

{1} Profit on sale of property and termination of AIG facility

The Group has reclassified from underlying earnings the profit on property disposal together with the
termination of the AIG faciity due to the quantum and the fact that these events occur Infrequently

fn) Net revaluation movernenis

The revaluation movements an investment properties are included in the Consolidated Income Statement
but have been reclassified separately from the underlying results to enable members 10 better appreciate
the operating performance

2011 Report & Financial Statements 33




Songbird Eslates plc

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements coninued

for the year ended 31 December 2011

(m} IAS 39 and IAS 32 adjustmenis

The commercial effect of the Groups hedging arrangements 1s that all the Group's financial habilities are at
fixed rates However, where the hedges are deemed ineffective the Consclidated Income Statement reflects
the effects of movemenis in the farr values of these hedging instruments  As this introduces volatility in the
Consolidated Income Statement which will not be reflected in the cash flows of the Group the tAS 39
adjustments have been reclassified separately from the underlying results The finance costs associated
with 1he Preference Shares have also been reclassified separalely from underlying earnings, reftecting the
fact that this expense relates to share capital that has been classified as debt in accordance with 1AS 32

(v} Refinancing costs and gains
These riems have been reclassified from undertying earnings due 10 ther size and infrequent occurrence

(v) Lehman tenant incentive write oif

Lease incentives atinbutable 1o Lehmans lease were written off following ithe Administrator ceasing to pay
rent The Group has reclassified thus cost due to the guantum and the fact that such evenis occur
infrequently

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use
of esumates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habihties at the date of the inancial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses dunng the reporting penod Although these
estimates are based on managements best knowledge of the arnount, event or actions actual results ultimately may
differ from those estimates

(i

(i)

{rin)

(v)

Valuation of investment and development properties

The Group uses the valuauons performed by its independent valuers as the fair value of its properties The
valuations are based upon assumptions including future rental income, anticipated void costs, the appropriate
discount rate or yield, and in the case of development properties, the estimated cosis to completnon The
valuers also make reference to market evidence of transaction prices for simiar properties

Outstanding rent reviews

Where the rent review date has passed and the revised annual rent has not yet been agreed, rent 1s accrued
from the date of the rent review based upon an estimation of the revised annual rent The estimate 1s derved
from knowledge of market rents for comparable properties

Financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments are determined by reference to the prices available on the markets on
which they are traded or by reference to valuations provided by counter party finarcial institutions

Construction contracts

IFRIC 15 reguires the Groups pre sale property confracts to be split into 3 component parts sale of land
completed construction works at the date of entering Mo the contracts, and ongoing construction contracts
The proceeds receivable under such coniracts are required 1o be allocated 1o each of these components The
allocation of revenue to completed construction woiks and ongoing construction contracts is calculated by
reference to the market rates applicable for such independently performed construction work The remaining
revenue component is allocated to the sale of land

Construction contracts are carrted at the lower of cost ang net realisable value The latter 1s assessed by the
Group having regard 10 suriable external adwvice and knowledge of recent comparable transactons

Revenue on construction contracls 1s recogrised using the percentage of completion method The directors
have estimated the outcome of each contract on an individual basis based on the proportion of costs incurred
compared with the estimated total costs and reconsider these estimates at each balance sheet date
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Operating profit represents the consolidated profit of the Group including the Group s share of results of associates,

but before net fmancing costs and tax

2011 2010

£'000 £ 060
The operating profit I1s stated after charging
— depreciation (Note 11) 472 607
— directors’ emoluments (Note 10) 560 370
Auditor’'s Remuneration

2011 2010

£000 £060
Audit of company 58 58
Audtt of subsidiaries 482 475
Total audit 540 533
Audit related assurance services (Intenm reviews) 79 79
Other assurance services (service charge assurance work) 43 43
Audit and related assurance services 662 655
Tax compliance services 166 245
Tax advisory services 127 438
Services relating to taxation 293 683
Services related to corporate inance transactions not covered above 45 250
Other non audit services not covered above 6 43
Total other non audit services 51 293
Total non audit services 466 1.098
Total fees 1,006 1.631
Occupational pension scheme audits 10 i0

Audit fees

Of the audil tees incurred in 2011 £53 500 related to the audrt of the consclidated accounts of Canary Wharf Group

(2010 - £52,000)
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a.

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Basic earnings and Iosses per share
2011 2010
Earnings/ Earmngs/
(losses) Per share {losses) Per share
£m ] £m P

Underlying profit for the year before tax 46 06 288 43
Capital and other items (217 4) (28 8) 4350 647
Tax 128.7 171 {42 9) (64)

(Loss)/profit after 1ax (84.1) (11 1) 4209 626
Less non controlling interest 16 0 21 (143 1) (21 3)

(Loss)/profit after tax attributable 1o members of the
Company (68 1) (9.0) 2778 413

Underlying earnings exclude the wnte down of unamorised Lehman incentives (Note 14) profits on sale of property
ternunanon of the AlG facihity, movements on property revaluations, movements in the fair value of ineffective hedging
instruments and other derivatives, interest payable on the Preference Shares, refinancing gains and losses and tax

Losses and earnings per share for 2611 has been calculated by reference to the loss atirbutable to equity
shareholders of £68 1m for 2011 (2010 - profit of £277 8m) and on the weighted average of 756 1m Ordinary Shares
inassue for 2011 (2010 — 672 5m) The number of Ordinary Shares excludes the shares held in trust In connection
with Canary Wharf Group's employee share benefit plan

The number of Ordinary Shares reflects the 1ssue on 11 October 2010 of 109,375,000 Ordinary Shares through the
Open Offer of which 1,174,972 shares were acquired by the Trust The Open Offer was not treated as a nghis issue
and accordingly the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares was not treated as diuted Had the Open Offer
been treated as a nghts issue for the purposes of IAS 33, earnings per share for 2010 would have been staled at
40 6p instead of 41 3p The result for 2011 would not have been affected by this change

Warranis were 1ssued in conneciion with the Shareholder Loan for a total of 2 836,666,668 Ordinary Shares with a
strnke prnice of 1 5p If exercised at the date of this report the Warrarms would equale to an addiional 28 835517
Ordinary Shares with an exercise price of 150p each No dilution anses from the Warrants as the average market
price of Ordinary Shares during the year of 134p did not exceed the exercise prce

36

2011 Repori & Financial Statements




31 December

Songbird Estates plc

30 June 31 December

2011 201 2010
£m £m £m
Balance sheet net assets 1,653.4 18956 1,753 6
Adjustment for deterred tax (14 3) 692 1096
Mark o market of denvatives 547.1 277 7 297 G
Add surplus ansing on construction contracts 58.1 557 527
2,244 3 2,298 2 22128
Non controlling mterest in the balance sheet (611 2) {689 5) (642 0)
Non controlling interest on adjustments above {181 0) (123 8) (141 2)
Adjusted net assets 1,452 1% 1,484 9 1,429 7
Adjusted NAV per share 190p 194p 187p

Adisted NAV per share includes the valuation surplus on construction contracts of £58 1m at 31 December 2011
{30 June 2011 — €55 7m 31 December 2010 — £52 7m), and exciudes farr value adjustments on dervatives and

deferred tax

The number of shares In 1ssue was 764 9m Drdinary Shares at each balance sheet date
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements convned

for the year ended 31 December 2011

5. REVENUE
2011 2010
£m Em
Rent recewvable 2513 2875
Write off of Lehman incentives and deferred leasing costs {(Note 14) - {50 1)
Recogrised incentives and committed rent increases (13) (38}
250.0 2338
Service charge income 75.2 743
Miscellaneous income 216 178
Recevable on termination of leases o1 183
Construction contract revenue 5.4 154
Gross develepment, rental and related income 352.3 3596
Sarvice charge and other direct property expenses {101 1) (88 9)
Movement in accruals and provisions for leaseheld comminiments (19) 18
Payments on termination of leases (01) (2 4)
Construction contract expenditure (5.4) (10 4}
Net development, rental and related income 243.8 2497
Rent recevable included contingent rents of £1 6m (20610 - £1 3m)
In 2011 the Group had 2 major customers contributing £81 6m and £42 6m of Group revenue (2010 — 2 major
customers contributing £80 6m and £43 7m)
6. NET REVALUATION MOVEMENTS ON PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS
2011 2010
£m £m
In Consolidated Income Statement
Revaluation of Investment properties 439 3328
Revaluation of development properties 198 (47)
63.7 3279
In accordance with 1AS 40 (amended), the revaluation movement on development properties 1s recognised in the
Consolidated Income Statement At 31 December 2011, a cumulative revaluation surpius on development properties
of £13 2m has been recognised (31 December 2010 — deficit £6 6m)
The revaluation surpius for development properties of £19 8m recognised in 2011 compared with a deficit of £4 7m
N 2010 This movement comprised a surpius of £7 3m for propetties where market value s less than histoncal
cost (2010 - dehicit of £5 6m) and a surplus of £12 5m on properties where market value exceeds histoncal cost
{2G10 — £0 9m)
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NET FINANCING COSTS

2011 2010
em £m
Interest revenue
Deposits, other loans and securibes 79 268
Interest expense
Notes and debentures (146.3) (152 3)
Shareholder Loan - (340)
Other bank loans and overdraits (63.4) (78 5)
Obligations under finance leases {1.0) (06)
(210.7) (265 4)
Underlying net financing costs (202 8) (239 6)
Other financing costs
Valuation movemenits on farr value of dervatives (250 1) (67 4)
Fimance costs of non equity shares (Note 21) (29.4) (30 8)
Hedging reserve recycling {9.2) (29 1)
(288.7) (127 1)
Net financing expenses (491.5) (366 7)
Costs on repurchase or repayment of debt (including hedge reserve recyching)
- Secured debt - (18 0)
- {18 Q)
Net hinancing costs (491.5) (384 7)
Total financing income 7.9 258
Total financing expenses (499.4) (410 5)
Net financing costs {491.5) {(3847)

Financing fees included in interest payable totalled £7 1m in 2011 (2010 - £12 6m)

Financing expenses relating to Canary Wharf Group’s construction loan facility will be transfesred to the cost of the
bulding as incurred from commencement of construction 1n 2012 untl practical completion of the bulding 15
achieved

The interest rate swap assoclated with the loan facility secured aganst the buldings at 1¢ Cabot Square and
20 Cabot Square was broken when the associated loan was repaid in 2010 at a cost 0f £23 7m Fees of £1 Om were
also incurred on repayment of this loan Accounting adjustments, compnsing the write off of unamortised deferred
fees of £2 7m and the recychng of the related unamortsed balance on the hedging reserve of £15 3m were also
taken to the Consolidated Income Statement which resulted i a charge of £18 Om, classihed as a capial and other
item

In 2011, £9 2m was recycled to the Consolidated Income Statement from the hedging reserve as the corresponding
hedged cash flows occurrea it the year In 2010, a total of £44 4m was transterred from the hedging reserve which
comprised £29 1m recycled as the corresponding cash flows occurred in that year together with the £15 3m relating
10 the interest rate swap refarred to in the previous paragraph
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements connuea

for the year ended 31 December 2011

8. TAX
2011 2010
£m £m

Tax charge

Current tax charge o income (o 1) (357)

Deterred tax 1288 (72)

Group total tax 1287 (42 9)

Tax reconciliation

Group profit on ordinary actwities betfore tax (212 8) 453 8

Tax on profit on ordinary activities at UK corporation tax rate of 26 5% (2010 — 28 0%) 56.4 {129 9}

Effects of

Change in tax rate (2.7) 41

Adjustments in respect of prior years 2.7 24

Effect of reversal of previously restricted capital loss and mdexation allowances

upon disposal of investment property - 43 4

Indexaton allowances and net eifect of resiriction or reversal of previously restricted

capital losses and indexation allowances 16.8 566

Release of EZA clawback provision 721 37

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (8.2) 9 0)

Deferred tax assets not recogrised on losses (0.4) 39

Other differences (8.0) {(103)

Group total tax 128.7 (42 9)

The 2011 tax rate of 26 5% has been calculated by reference to the current corporation tax raie of 26 0% which was

in effect for the final 3 quarters of the year and the previous rate of 28 0% which was in effect for the first quarter of

the year

At 31 December 2010, the Group had provided £72 1m for the potential clawback of EZAs claimed in the event that

the Group was to sell the property interests to which those clarms related The perod m which such a potential

clawback could have occurred has now expired and accordingly the provision has been released

The reconciling tems noted above 1IN relation to property valuation movements reflect the following main factors

* Indexation allowances, which are calculated by reference to changes in the Retall Price Index, serve to change
the Group’s deterred tax independently of any movements in valuation,

* Indexation allowances cannoct create or Increase a capital loss Due to the need to restnct capial losses on
certain properties where capital allowances (in the form of EZAs) have been previously claimed, reductions n
property valuations do not necessarily result in the recognition of a corresponding deferred tax asset, and

* Property valuation gains do not necessarly result in the recognition of a corresponding deferred tax hability
where the valuation gamn results in a reversal of previous such restrnictions

2011 included on account corporation tax payments of £2 1m Taking into account the availability of brought forward

tax losses and other reliefs, a charge of £0 1m was recogrised in the year, which served 1o reduce the accrual for

corporation tax payable to £52 9m at 31 December 2011 from £55 Om at 31 December 2010 (Note 17)
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Losses & Revaluation Farr value of Financral
1ax creclits deficits dervatives Instruments Other Totat

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax assets
1 January 2010 (o)} 314 649 287 25 12581
(Charge)/credit to iIncome {0 5) (1380} 113 (31) 04 (109
Credit to equity - 03 — - 3
31 December 2010 01 124 765 2586 29 117 5
(Charge)/credit to iIncome 01 05} 567 38 o7 530
Credit to eguity - - 04 - - 04
31 December 2011 - 119 1336 218 a6 1709

Potential EZA Revaluabion  Fair value of Financial
tlawback surpluses dernvatives  nstrurnents Other Total

£m £m om £m £m £m
Deferred tax habiities
1 January 2010 (75 8) (97 G} - (44 O) - (216 8)
Credit/(charge) to iIncome 37 (12 9} 140 33 {44} 37
Charge 1o equity - - (14 0) - - {14 0)
31 December 2010 (72 1) {108 9} - (40 7} {4 4) (227 1)
Credit/(charge) to iIncome 721 (40} 53 46 (22} 758
Charge to equity - - 53} - - (53)
31 December 2011 - (113 9) - (36 1) {6 6) (156.6)

All deferred tax assets and liabiliies may potenbally be offset The amount at which deferred tax s staled, after
offsetting for financial reporting purposes, comprises

£m
Net liability at 1 January 2010 (887)
Credit to income (7 2)
Credit to equity (137)
Net habilty at 31 December 2010 (109 6)
Credit to income 1288
Charge to equrty (49)
Net asset at 31 December 2011 143

i 1s not possible to determine the amounts which will crystallise within one year as required by IFRS as 1 1s not
possible to determine which properties, If any, will be sold in the next financial year olher than those for which an
agreement 1o sell already exists

A deferred tax asset has been recognised on the mark to market of debt and other adjustments relating 1o Canary
Wharf Group's tax posston at the date of acquisiion These deferred tax balances will be amortised io ihe
Consohdated income Statement in ine with the amortisation of the far value adjustments which gave nise 1o them

Deferred tax assets of £94 1m (31 December 2010 — £20 Om) attnbutable 0 unused tax losses have noi been
recognised as It 1s not currently considered probable that they will be utihsed
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contnued

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Following the announcement on 23 March 2011 that corporation tax will be reduced w0 25 0% from Apnl 2012
deferred tax has been prowvided for at the reduced rate This has served to increase the deferred tax asset by
approximately £5 Om compared with deferred tax calculated at the current tax rate of 26 0% The Government has
also indicated that it intends to enact future reductions in the main iax rate over the next 3 years down to 22 0% by
1 Apnl 2014 The future 1 0% main rate reductions are expected, when substantively enacted to have a simdar
impact on the financial statements as outhned above, however the actual impact will be dependent on the delerred
tax position al that lime

9. OPERATING LEASES
Operating leases with the Group as lessor
Canary Wharf Group leases cut its investment properbes under operating leases as defined by IAS 17
At 31 December 2071 the weighted average unexpired lease term under non cancellable operating leases for the
entire Investment properly portfolio was 14 9 years (31 December 2010 — 15 7 years)
The future aggregate mimimum rentals receivable under non cancellable operating leases excluding contingent
rental Income  at the balance shest dates are as follows
31 December 31 December
2011 2G10
£m £m
Within cne year 255.2 267 7
Between twe and five years 995.8 Q80 2
After five years 2,589.9 28077
3,840.9 4,085 6
10 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
With the exception of fees paid to the non executive Chairman and non executive directors, all other staff costs relate
1o employees of Canary Whart Group
Staff costs - all employees of the Group including directors
2011 2010
£m £m
Wages and salaries 565 56 0
Social secunty costs 61 58
Other pension costs 4.2 38
66.8 656
The average monthly number of employees, including Canary Wharf Group, dunng 2011 was 926 (2010 - 879) as
set out below
2011 2010
Construction 164 145
Property management 612 593
Administration 150 141
926 879
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Directors’ remuneration

2011 2010
£'000 £ 000
Emoluments paid 560 370

No pension plan 1s operated by the Company and none of the directors participate in Canary Wharf Group’s pension
plan

Highest paid director

2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Dawvid Pritchard 100 130

Dawvid Pritchard's emoluments for 2010 included a bonus of £30 C00

Other directors
Non executive directors recerve an annual fee of £50,000

John Botts receives an addonal £10,000 in respect of his rote as chairman of the Audit Commitiee As reflected
above, separate fee arrangements have been agreed with the Chairman

Other non executive directors

Fees

£ 000
Faisal Al-Hamach 50
Khalfa Al-Kuwar 50
Sheikh Mohammed Bin Hamad Bin Jassim Al-Thani 50
John Botts 60
Peter Harned 50
Jorathan Lane 50
Sam Levinscn 50
Alex Midgen 50
Bnan Niles 50

The above table shows the fees paid or payable to the non executive directors or, as applicable, ther employers

Drirectors’ share options

No executive share option pfan has been adopied by the Company and none of the directors of the Company
participate in Canary Wharf Group’s share plan

Key management

The business of the Company i1s the management af its investmen? in Canary Wharf Group The overall business
decisions of the Company are managed by the Board and its committess Remuneration of the directors 1s as
disclosed above

Pension schemes

Canary Wharf Group currently operates a defined contribution penston scheme The assets of the scheme are held
I an independently administered fund The pension cost, which amounied o £4 2m in the year (2010 — £3 8m)
represents coninbutions payable by Canary Wharf Group to the scheme
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contnued

for the year ended 31 December 2011

1"

INVESTMENT, DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION PROPERTIES AND PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Non current assets and construction contracts at 31 December 2010 compnised

investmen.

property
Investmen. held for Development Construction Plant &
properies sale properiias coniracis Total equipment Total
om £ £m £m £m £m £m
Market value at 1 January 2010 45870 1920 2210 - 5,000.0
Adjust for brought forward
— tenant Incentives” {188 2) (15 1) - - (203.3)
- unamortised lease negotiation costs* (57) (o)) - - (6.4)
Carrying value at 1 January 2010 4,393 1 176 2 2210 - 47903 15 4,791 8
Additions 795 (10 522 178 148.5 (O] 148 6
Transfer to debtors due In
more than one year (53 4) - - - (53 4) - (53 4) |
Revaluation movement 3326 - 47) - 3279 - 3279
Sold property {(3063) (175 2) - - (481 5) - (481 5)
Transfer to cost of sales - - - (15 4) (15 4) - (15.4)
Transfer to payments on account - - - (24) (2 4) - (2 4)
Depreciation - - - - - (0 &) (0.6)
Carrying value at 31 December 2010 4,345 5 - 268.5 - 4,714.0 1.0 47150
Adjust for
-~ tenant incentives” 184 4 - - - 184.4
— unamoriised lease negotiation costs® 86 - - - 8.6
Market value at 31 December 2010 4,638.5 - 268.5 - 4,907.0
Non current assets and construction contracts at 31 December 2011 comprised
Invesiment Development Construcuon Plant &
propert es properies contracts Total equpment Total
m £m £m £m £m Em
Market vaiue at 1 January 2011 46385 268 5 - 4,907.0
Adjust for brought forward
— tenant Incentives” (184 4) - - (184.4)
— unameorhsed lease negotation costs” {8 8) - - (8.6)
Carrying value at 1 January 2011 4,445 5 2685 - 47140 10 47150
Additions 20 3 35 14 25.2 - 252
Revaluation movement 439 198 - 63.7 - 637
Transfer to cost of sales - - {5 4} {5.4) - (5.4)
Transfer to payments on account - - 40 4.0 - 40
Depreciauon - - - - (0 5) (0.5)
Carrying value at 31 December 2011 4,509 7 2918 - 4,801.5 0.5 4,8020
Ad)just for
~ tenant incentives® 183 1 - - 1831
—unamortised lease negotiation costs® 77 17 - 9.4
Market value at 31 December 2011 4,700 5 293.5 - 49940

* Refer to Note 14 for further detads

No property nterests were held under operating leases and classified as investment properties
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There 18 no capitaksed interest in the carrying amount of the development properties at either 31 December 2011 or
31 December 2010

in August 2011, Canary Wharf Group reached agreement with EMA for a pre let of 250 000 sg ft in a new office
bullding of approximately 525,000 sq ft to be constructed at 25 Churchill Place EMA alsc has a call option over an
additional 108 000 sq ft Construction on the shell and core of the bulding commenced in February 2012

In January 2010, Canary Wharf Group completed the disposal of 5 Churchill Place for a gross aggregate
consideration of €208 Om The market value of the property at 31 December 2009 was £1922 Om and the adjustment
attnbutable to tenant iIncentives and deterred negotation costs was £15 8m Allowing for adjustments in constructon
costs recognised In the penod of £1 0m the carrying value at the date of sale was €175 2m

In December 2010, Canary Wharf Group completed the disposal of 25 Bank Street for a gross aggregate
consideration of £495 Om  After taking Into account costs associated with selling tne building, including relocating
existing sub tenants legal and professional fees, certain other allowances and the wnte off of unamortised tenant
incentives, the Group reccrded a profit on disposal of £155 1m

As disclosed In Note 14 1n the first half of 2010 unamoriised lease ncentives attributable to Lehman's lease were
written off to the Consolidated Income Statement and treated as a capital and other itemn within revenue Unamortised
tenant Incentives attributable to the sub tenants in the bullding at the date of disposal totalled £2 7m

In November 2008, Canary Wharf Group entered into an agreement with J P Morgan for the development of the
Riverside South site on the Estate Further to this agreement Canary Wharf Group acts as development and
construction manager in relation to the site and has receved £78 Om as an advance of developers profit This sum
will be set against Canary Wharf Group’s entitlement to future profits ansing from the development Income earned
on this project subseguent 1o the sale of the site In 2008 has been deferred and 13 recognised over the term of the
contract in accordance with IFRIC 15 As a result, no profit has been recognised on this project 1o date The 2008
agreement was modified in 2010 and expires in October 2016 In the event construction does not progress Canary
Wharf Group has a nght of first offer for the site

On 24 December 2008 Canary Wharf Group entered intoc agreements with the Secretary of State for Transport and
CLAL for the design and construction of the Crossrail station at Canary Wharf £350 Om of the cost of the station will
be met from the Crossrail budget and the balance by the Group The anticipated cost to the Group has been
accounted for when incurred, as additions to development properties and allccated to each development property
including the Riverside South project on a sq ft basis Canary Wharf Group's contribution will be apphed aganst any
transport Section 106 contributions for certain agreed development sites on the Estate which may be required as
pari of the London Plan Canary Wharf Group assesses that it has now fulfilled its funding ebligations under the terms
of the agreement

Vajuation

The far value of Canary Wharl Groups properties has been arrived at on the basis of valuations carred out by
external valuers CBRE, Savills or Cushman as at 31 December 2011 The valuations, which conform to International
Valuation Standards, were arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties

The assumptions on which the valuauons are based are summarnsed in the Business Review — Valuations

The properties have been valued individually and not as part of a portfolio and no allowance has been made for
expenses of realisation or for any tax which might anse The valuations reflect usual deductions In respect of
purchasers costs and in parbeular full habtlity for UK stamp duty as applicable at the valuation date

Included in Invesiment properties s an amount of approximaiely £26 8m (31 December 2010 — £24 8m) in respect
of property occupied by Canary Wharf Group, which in the opinion of the directors 1s not maiterial for separaie
classification
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements conunued

for the year ended 31 December 2011

The histonical cost of propertues held as non current assets was £3.901 8m (31 December 2010 - £3.878 Om)
At 31 December 2011, no property was subject to a finance lease obhgation At 31 December 2010 the carrying
value of property subject to finance leases was approximately £76 8m

Direct aperating expenses arsing from nvestment properties that did not generate rental income In the year totalled
£7 5mn 2011 (2010 - £8 3m)

Construchion contracts

Construction contracts comprnise amounis recoverable under long term development contracts less paymenis on
account The amounts for payments on account at the Balance Sheet date are as follows

Riverside
South
£m
1 January 2010 224
Advances receved 329
Contract revenue recogrised as revenue in the Consohdated Income Statement (15 4)
Oifset from construction contracts (2 8)
31 BDecember 2010 375
Advances recewved 114
Contract revenue recognised as revenue in the Consolidaied Income Statement (5 4)
Cffset irom construction contracts 44
Gross amount due to customers for contract work at 31 December 2011 47.9
Cumulative amounts accounted for as construction contracts are as follows
£m
Advances recewved 1235
Recognised as revenue (610}
Offset from construction contracts {14 8)
Payments on account {(Note 17) 47.9

No retentions were held by customers for contract work at either 31 December 2011 or 31 December 2010

INVESTMENTS

The investments balance comprises
31 December 31 December

2011 2010

£m £m

Shares 0.7 a7
Loans 106.4 420
1071 557

Fees on acquisition 5.0 26
Share of post acquisition losses (0 9) (08)
Revaluation of property interests 7.6 -
Impairment of Investment (6.3) (107)
112.5 430

The farr values of all equity securilies are based on the net assets of those companies as adjusted for the fair values
of assets and habilties
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31 December

31 December

2011 2010
£m £m
Associates and joint ventures 1123 42 8
Other investments 02 02
1125 430

The carrying value of the mvestment 1n associates and joint veniures comprnsed

Wood Drapers 20 Fenchurch Shell

Wharf Gardens Street Cenlre Total
At 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £rm Em
Intial Investment - 67 01 - 68
Fees 36 07 - o7 50
Equity funding - 23 - - 23
Loan funding 271 — 218 195 68 4
Recognised share of losses (60) 51) {01) - (11 2)
Acqusition of addiional interest 380 - - - 380
Share of revaluation surplus - - 76 - 76
Final dwvidend - 46) - - (4 6}

627 - 294 202 1123

The share of associates’ and joint venture’s profits and losses recognised in the Consclidated Income Staiement in

2011 compnised

Wood Drapers 20 Fenchurch Shell
Wharf Gardens Street Centre Total
Al 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m
Other expenses (02) - (0 1} - (03)
Revaluation of property interest - - 76 - 76
(0.2) - 75 - 73
Associates and joint ventures
Details of the Groups associates and joint venitures at 31 December 2011 are as follows
Ownershup
Date of Country of interest
acquisition NCorporation Yo
Wood Whart Aprl 2005 UK 500
Drapers Gardens June 2007 Netherlands/Jersey 200
20 Fenchurch Street October 2010 UK/ Jersey 50
Shell Centre July 2011 UK/Jersey 500

In April 2005, BWE appointed Canary Whari Group together with Ballymore, as iis pariner for the development of
Wood Wharf WWLP was esiablished to oversee the development of an approximately 7 Om sq ft {gross) mixed use
scheme In which Canary Wharf Group onginally had a 25 0% effective interest In add:tion to an initial entry premium
of £18m Canarv Wharf Group provided interest free long term loans to fund the working capital requirements of
WWLP which are repayable out of development profits
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements coninued

for the year ended 31 December 2011

In December 2011 Canary Wharf Group acquired an additional 25 0% effective mterest in WWLP from Ballyrore for
a total consideration ot £38 Om which was paid in cash Subseguent to the year end, in January 2012, Canary Wharf
Group acquired the remaining 50 0% effective interest in Wood Wharf from BWB for a total consideration of £52 4m
In conjunction with the acquisition, BWB granted a new 250 year lease of the site supject to a ground rental payment
to BWB which wili ncrease 1o £6 Om per annum by 2016 {ollowed by upwards only reviews linked to the passing
rent achieved on the office bulldings and the ground rents paid by purchasers of the residential apartments to be
buillt on the siie The £52 4m consideration comprises an upfront payment of £4 4m and a senes of 4 annual
payments up to and including 2015

As a result of the acquisition of Ballymore's interest, Canary Wharf Group held a 50 0% effective interest in Wood
Wharf at 31 December 2011 The investment was accounted for as an mvestment in an associated undertaking at
that date

At 31 December 2011, the carrying valug of the Group s investrent in Wood Wharf was £62 7m This carrying value
comprnsed the inihial entry premium of £1 9m and subsequent loan funding of £27 1m, iess the impairment and share
of losses recognised tataling £6 Om together with the cost of acquirng Ballymore s interest of £38 Om and fees of
£17m The premiumn recognised on the acquistion of Ballyrore's interest was £16 6m

WWHLP has entered into a non recourse loan facility of £5 2m of which £0 2m was repaid in the year The final matunty
of the loan 15 1n December 2013 This bank loan first must be repaid before loans provided to WWLP by Canary Whari
Group can be repaid All loans must have been repaid In full prior to any dividends being declared

In June 2007, Canary Whart Group entered into & joint venture to undertake the redevelopment of Drapers Gardens
The property was completed in November 2010 and the joint venture entities then completed the sale of the property
At 31 December 2010, the Group carried (s investment in the remaining joint venture entities at its share of net assets
totalling £4 6m The joint venture entities returned this amount In 2011 by way of dividends and loan repayments The
remaining net assets of the joint venture are expected to be uthised v winding up the structure Following the
payrment of the final dividend by the Drapers Gardens entiies the brought forward impairment provision has been
realised and offset agamst the Group’s investment in shares in these entities

In October 201C, Canary Wharf Group announced that it had entered into a joint venture with Land Securnties to
develop 20 Fenchurch Street The property has been sold by Land Securities to the joint venture at a price of £90 2m,
in hne with the March 2010 valuation After syndication, Canary Wharf Group has a 15 0% equity interest in the joint
venture and 1s acting as construction manager and joint development manager

In September 2011, an external revaluation resulted in an additional revaluation surplus of £50 6m on the project, of
which £7 8m 15 attributable 1o the Group and has been taken to the Consolidated Income Statement and classified
as a capital and other itemn The Group's investment was stated at £29 4m at 31 December 2011 {31 December 2010
— £16 4m), representing the mmial investment plus associated fees, together with subseguent funding and the
Group's share of the revaluation surplus

In July 2011 Canary Wharf Group and Qatan Diar entered nito a 50 50 joint venture to redevelop the Shell Centre
and have committed toc contrbute £150 Om each to secure the site on a 299 year lease Discussions have
commenced with local planming authonties and relevant stakeholders 1o establish planning consents detailled
designs and a timetable for construction of the project At 31 December 2011, Canary Wharl Group and Qatar Diar
had each invested £12 5m in the joint venture structure Canary Wharf Group incurred fees of £0 7m in establishung
the joint venture

The Directors constder that the values of the projects are not less than the amounts invested at the balance sheet
date
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Wood Wharf, Drapers Gardens and the Shell Centre project have a 31 December year end and 20 Fenchurch Street
has a 31 March year end The results of Wood Wharf, Drapers Gardens 20 Fenchurch Street and the Shell Centre
attributable to the Group have been derived from ther UK GAAP management accounts after making any necessary
IFRS adjustments Following the dwdend and loan repayments made by the remaining Drapers Gardens entities in
the year, only neghgible net assets remain in that joint venture The Group's share of profits and losses of associated

and joint venture undertakmgs is as follows

Summarnsed profit and loss accounts for 2011

Shell 20 Fenchurch Drapers Wood
Centre Street Gardens Whart
£m £m £m £m
Other (costs)income - (10} - 02
Revaluation gain - 506 - _
Net financing costs - - - (09)
Profit/(foss) before and after tax -~ 496 - (07)
Group share - 75 - {02}
Summarised balance sheets at 31 December 2011
Shell 20 Fenchurch Drapers Wood
Centre Street Gardens Whart
£m £m £m £€m
Total assets 404 186 9 - 136 1%
Total habities (14) (09) - (43 9)
Net assets 390 186 0 - g2 2
Group share 195 294 - 46 1
Summansed profit and loss accounts for 2010
20 Fenchurch Drapers Wood
Street Gardens Wharf
£m £m £m
Other Income - 34 60
Net financing costs - (207) (10)
{Loss)/profit before and after tax - (17 3) 50
Group share - 13 12
Summarised balance sheets at 31 December 2010
20 Fenchurch Drapers Wood
Street Gardens Whart
£m £m £m
Total assets 1037 165 1307
Total labilities (49) {53} (43 3)
Net assets o8 8 112 87 4
Group share 16 4 46 218
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Other investments

Canary Wharf Group owns 52 079 B preferred ordinary shares of 0 1p and 112,220 ordinary shares of 0 1p in HSO
an unhsted company registered In Engtand and Wales being approximately 13 0% of s nominal share capital The
principal activity of HSO 1s the provision cf broadband telecommunications services The fair value of this investment
on acquisition of Canary Wharf Group was £06m During 2008, the carrying value of the investment was wrtien
down to £0 2m (after a total provision of £0 4m), based an the net asset value of HSO at that date and continues to
be carred at that amount

13, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2011 2010
£Em £m
Trade recevables a8 34
Other recewvables 206 1886
Contract balances (Note 11) - 24
Prepaymenis and accrued income 171 432
Deferred financing expenses 4.2 -
Total trade and other receivables 46.7 676
Financing expenses of £4 2m incurred on Canary Wharf Group's construction loan facility have been deferred The
first draw down under this facility 15 expected to occur in 2012 at which tme these fees will be transferred to
Beorrowings and netted against the cutstanding balance on the loan
In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group censiders any change In ihe credit quality of the
receiwvables on an individual basis from the date the trade recevable was created 1o the date the accounts were
approved Credit nsk 1s reduced due to Canary Wharf Group's properties being under lease 1o high quality tenants
In addition, rents and service charges are invoiced quarterly in advance
No amount owed by any trade debtor exceeded £1 Om at either 31 December 2011 or 31 December 2010 Trade
recewvables more than 61 days past due at 31 December 2011 totalled £2 2m (31 December 2010 — £20m) At
31 December 2011, provisions against bad or doubtful trade debts totallea £0 1m (31 December 2010 - £0 1m) and
the bad debt expense for the year was £nil No impairment prowsions were required agamnst any other class of
financial asset at either 31 December 2011 or 31 December 2010
Prepayments and accrued income exclude the cumulative adjustment in respect of lease incentives (Note 14}
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14 TENANT INCENTIVES AND OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Lease incentves include rent free pencds and other incentives given to lessees on entering INto lease arrangements

15
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Other Total Deferred

Rent free tenant tenant  negoliabion
periods ncentives  incentives costs Total
Em £m £m £Em £m
1 January 2010 1391 642 2033 64 209.7
Transfer from investment properties (Note 11) - 534 534 - 534
Recognition of rent dunng rent free pernods 110 - 110 - 11.0
Whnig off of Lehman incentives {50 #) - {501) - (50.1)
Amoartisation 90 (586) (14 6) (0 4) (15.0)
Deferred lease negottation costs - - - 33 3.3
Written off on sale of property (93) @3 {18.6) 07 (19.3)
31 December 2010 g17 1027 184.4 86 1930
Recognition of rent durmg rent free penods 122 - 12.2 - 12.2
Amortisation (81 (54) (13.5) {C8B) (14.1)
Deferred lease negotaticn costs - - - 14 1.4
31 December 2011 858 973 183.1 94 1925

At 31 December 2009, lease incentives included €50 Tm atiributable to Lehman's lease of 25 Bank Street The
Admimisirator ceased paying rent on the bullding with efiect from 31 March 2010 Accordingly, the remaming Lehman
incentives were written oif {o the Consolidated Income Statement in the 6 months ended 30 June 2010 and disclosed

as a capital and other item

MONETARY DEPOSITS

Manetary deposits comprise amounts held on deposit with onginal maturites in excess of 3 months or not held for
the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments These deposits are charged, relate to Canary Wharf Group's

construction contracts and mature over the Iife of those contracts

2011 2010
£m £m
Monetary deposits held at bank 3.9 51
The effective Inierest rate on monetary deposits was 0 6% (31 December 2010 - 0 6%)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and casn equivalents comprise
201 2010
£m m
Unsecured cash 864.8 8898
Collateral for borrowings 116.7 194 4
Secunty for obligations 14.6 140
996.1 1,108 2

The effectve interest rate on short 1erm deposits at 31 December 2011 was 0 8% {31 December 2010 -0 7%) and
the deposis had an average matunty of 45 days (31 December 2010 — 49 days)

Casnh and casn equivalents comprise casn held by the Group ana short term bank deposits with an onginal matunity
of 3 months or less The carrying amount of these assets approximates ther fair value
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17.

The Group's collaterat for borrowings can be analysed by the borrowings to which it relates as foliows

2011 2010

£m £m

Securtised debt 978 1332
Secured loans 189 188
Finance lease - 42 4
1167 194 4

Of the cash collateral disclosed above all of the secured loans balance and £14 8m of the secuntised debt balance
{31 December 2010 — £20 7m) represents rental payments from tenants recewved in advance

The balance of cash collateral for borrowings disclosed above 1s held to reduce the exposure of the lenders to
certain risks such as cash collateralising the Group’s exposure on vacant property These amounts are released from
charge as and when such nsks are eliminated in accordance with the terms of the loans

Until the finance lease restructunng in December 2011, the finance lease obhgation was fully cash collateralised The
cash collateral balance at 31 December 2010 compared with a carrying value of the finance lease hatility for

accounts purposes of £41 6m

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CORPORATION TAX

2011 2010

£m £m

Trade payables 75 126
Tax and social secunty costs 72 74
Other payables 242 207
Other accruals 67 9 66 5
Deferred income 814 68 1
Payments on account (Note 11) 47.9 375
Total trade and other payables 2361 2128
Corporation tax 529 550

Trade and other payables includes £78 9m of financial labiities at 31 December 2011 {31 December 2010 -
£82 0m) These amounts are all payable on demand

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and construction costs
The average credit period taken for trade purchases 1s 16 days (31 December 2010 — 18 days) For those supplers
that do charge interest no nterest s charged on the trade payables for the first 28 days from the date of the mvoice
Thereafter interest 15 charged on the outstanding balances at vanous interest rates which are deterrmined by
reference to the terms of each such agreement The Group has financial risk management policies in place which
seek o ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe The directors consider that the carrying amount
of trade payables approximates therr farr value

For ifurther information an corporation tax refer to Note 8
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CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM BORROWINGS
The current portion of long term borrowings comprises
2011 2010
Em £m
Accrued interest payable 2741 327
Repayable within one year
— securitised debt 57.5 575
- secured loans 9.0 85
Long term borrowings repayable within one year 936 o987
The terms of the Group's loan faciities are summarnsed in Note 21
BORROWINGS
Nen current hability borrowings comprise
2011 2010
£m £m
Securiised debt 2,322.1 23848
Secured loans 983.0 8897
Finance lease cbhgations - 416
3,305.1 3,326 1
Freference Shares 270.5 2689
3,5756 35950

The terms of the Group’s loan facilities are summarised in Note 21

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Hedge accounting

The Group uses nterest rate swaps and interest rate caps 1 hedge exposure 1o the vanability in cash flows on
floating rate debt including its bank faciities and floatng rate bonds caused by movements in market rates of
interest At 31 December 2011 the farr value of these denvatives resulted in the recogniticn of a liability of £547 1m
(31 Decermnber 2010 - lrability of £297 Om) The Group has no interest rate swaps or collars which qualify for hedge
accounting

2011 2010
£m £m
Liabiities
Secuntisation (280 2) (126 4)
Other secured loans (266 9) (170 6)
(547.1) (297 0)
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Matunty of the Group’s financial derivatives

The following tables show undiscounted cash flows in relation to the Group's denvative financial instrumenis based
on the Groups prediction of future movements in Interest rates

Other Total

Securitised secured derivative

debt loans habilities

em £m Erm

Within one year 268 365 63.3
in one to two years 238 315 55.3
In two to five years 354 481 83.5
In five to ten years 100 245 345
In ten to twenty years 232 348 580
In twenty to thirty years 285 120 405
31 December 2010 1477 187.4 3351
Other Total

Secunnsed secured dernvative

debt loans habiities

£m £m £m

Within one year 243 342 585
In one to two years 2786 368 645
In two to five years 713 771 148 4
In five to ten years 667 619 128 6
In ten to twenty years 950 700 1650
In twenty to thirty years 299 103 40.2
31 December 2011 314.8 290.4 605.2

The impact of changes in interest rates would be on interest recevable since substanually all borrowings are subject
1o interest rate swaps or collars and all cash deposits are at floating rates However the Consclidated Income
Statement 1s also iImpacted by changes in the fair value of derivatives that are not considered effective for accounting
purposes A 0 5% higher/(lower) parallel shift in the Interest rate curve used to value the denvatives, with all other
vanables held constant, would have increased/{decreased) the Group s net assets for 2011 by £119 Omi£(130 4)m
(2610 - £101 Om/2{110 6)m) by changing the profit or loss tor the year by the same amount Other eguity reserves
would have been unchanged as none of the Group's denvatives gualfy for hedge accounting The 0 5% sensitivity
has been selected based on the directors' view of a reasonable interest rate curve movement agsumption
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21 NET DEBT

2011 2010

£m £m

Secuniused debt 26827 25911
Other secured loans 1,263.1 i.0azz2
Finance lease obligations - 416
39458 37149

Non equity shares and assoclatea financing costs 270.5 2758
Gross debt 4,216.3 39807
Current habilities 93.6 987

Non current habilties

- borrowings 3,575.6 35950
- denvabves included in non current habilities 547.1 2970
Gross debt 4,216.3 39807
Cash and cash equivalents (996.1) {1,108 2}
Monetary deposits (3.9) (5 1)
Net debt 3,216.3 28774

As a result of the terms and condibicns of the Preference Shares, such shares have been classiied as borrowings
and the Consolidated Income Statement includes a charge to profit in respect of the coupon payable calculated at
2 5% per quarter The accrued finance charge for the Preference Shares was £6 9m at 31 December 2010 and 1s
classified as part of current llabiliies There was no accrued finance charge at 31 December 2011 as a result of the
payment of the Preferential Dividend in December 2011
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The amounts at which borrowings are staled, including share capital classified as debt, comprige

Cther Finance Non
Secuntsed secured iease Total equity
debt loans obligations borrowings shares Total
£m £m m £m £m £m
1 January 2011 2,591 1 1,082 2 416 37149 2758 3,907
Drawn down in year - g23 - 923 - 92.3
Effective interest rate adjusiment {3 3) o1 10 {2 4) 16 {0.8)
Accrued finance charges {14) c9 (02) {07) 278 27.1
Repaid in year (57 5) (E 5) (42 4) (108 4) (34 7) (143.1)
Movements i fair value
of derivatives 1538 g6 3 - 2501 - 2501
31 December 2011 2,6827 1,263.1 - 3,945.8 2705 4,216 3
Payable within one year
or on demand 804 132 - 936 - 936
Payable in more than
ane year 2322 1 9830 - 33051 2705 3,5756
Dernwvatives classified as
— non current liabiliies 2802 266 9 - 547 1 - 547.1
26827 1,263.1 - 3,945.8 270.5 4,216.3

All the borrowings of Canary Wharf Group are secured against designated property interests of Canary Wharf Group

(1) At 31 December 2011

the following notes issued by CWF || a subsidiary of Canary Wharf Group, were

outstanding
Pringipal
Tranche £em Interest Repayment
A1 1,088 4 6 455% By instalment from 2009 to 2030
A3 4000 5852% By instalment from 2032 to 2035
A7 2220 Floating In 2035
B 190 1 6 BOO% By instalment from 2005 to 2030
83 1040 Floating In 2035
c2 2750 Floating In 2035
D2 1250 Floating In 2035
2,404 5

In April 2009 Canary Wharf Group repurchased certain floating rate Notes with an aggregate principal amount
of £118 7m for an aggregate considerasion excluding accrued interest, of £35 5m The Notes repurchased have
not been cancelled remam i 1ssue and In accordance with the requirements of the secunusation, continue to
be fully hedged The repurchase was accounted for as an extinguishment of debt

Interest on the floatng rate Notes 1s at 3 month LIBOR plus a margin The margins on these Notes are A7 Notes
—019% p a increasing to 0 475% in January 2017, B3 Notes — 0 28% p a increasing to 0 7% p a in January
2017, C2 Notes — 0 55% p a increasing to 1 375% in Apnl 2014, and D2 Notes -0 84% p a increasing o 2 1%

in Apnil 2014

All of the floating raie Notes are hedged by means of interest rate swaps and the hedged rates plus the margins
are A7 Notes — 5 1135%, B3 Notes — 5 1625%, C2 Notes — 5 4416%, and D2 Notes - 5 B005% These swaps
expire in 2035 concurrent with the Notes
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In additon 1o the 3 classes of floating rate Notes referred to above, the following classes of fixed rate Notes
rermnained outstanding at 31 December 2011, carrying the interest rates stated £1,088 4m of A1 Notes -6 455%
£400 Om of A3 Notes - 5 952% and £190 im of B Notes — 6 800%

The principal amount of the Notes outstanding at 31 December 2011 was £2,404 5m, or £2,284 8m excluding
the Notes repurchased The Notes are secured on certain property interests of Canary Wharf Group and the
renial iIncome stream therefrom

Prior to withdrawing 25 Bark Street the CWF |l secuniisabion had the benefit of an agreement with AlG which
provided at the election of Canary Wharf Group for the payment of the contracied rent under the lease following
a default by Lehman either inits entirety or to cover any shortfall The agreement was for a period of 4 years
from the first draw down and any amounts claimed would have been repayable by Canary Wharf Group if
subsequent recovernes made in respect of amounts clamed or subsequent rentals in the properties exceeded
the rents that would have been receved from Lehman In November 2010, tarms were agreed with AlG for the
termination of the facility in consideration for a payment to Canary Wharf Group of £144 Bm This sum
represented the net present value of the amounts anticipated to be drawn under the facility, net of the fees
payable io AlG and the anticipated recovery from the Lehman administration process

Separately, the securitisation has the benefit of an arrangement with AIG which covers the rent in the eveni of a
default by the tenant of 33 Canada Square, over the entire term o1 the lease AlG has posted approximately
£269 6m as cash collateral in respect of this cbligation The annual fee payable 1n respect of the arrangement
1s £2 2m

CWF 1l also has the benefit of a £300 Om hguidity facility provided by Lloyds, under which drawings may be
made in the event of a cash flow shortage under the securitisation This facility 1s renewabte annually

The weighted average maturily of the debentures at 31 December 2011 was 15 & years {31 December 2010 —
16 1 years) The debentures may be redeemed at the option of the 1ssuer in an aggregate amount of nct less
than £1 0m on any interest payment date subject o the current rating of the debentures not being adversely
aftected and certain other condiions affecung the amount to be redeemed

In December 2011, Canary Wharf Group entered into a £190 Om development loan facility secured aganst the
property now under consiruction at 25 Churchill Place Ne draw downs had been made under this facility at
31 December 2011 The margin on the loan 1s 300 bps over LIBOR from first draw down to rent commencement,
following which the margin may drop io 250 bps or 225 bps subject to the satisfaction of certain interest cover
tests Up front fees of £4 2m were incurred on entering into the facility and a commitment fee of 150 bps per
annum I1s payable on the undrawn facitity

in February 2007, Canary Wharf Group entered into a 3 year £155 Om construction loan facility secured on
5 Churchill Place Interest was charged at LIBOR plus 2 margin of 0 9% hedged at 5 625% At 31 December
2009 £123 4m including interest had been drawn down under this facility Practical completion of the buillding
was achieved n August 2009 and the loan was repaid in January 2010 upon completion of the sale of the
bulding As a result of repaying the loan Canary Whart Group paid £159m to cancel its llability under the
assoclated interest rate swap arrangements

Canary Wharf Group has a £350 Om lean facility which 1s secured against Canary Whari Group's retal properties
and car parking interests

The loan facility carries interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 2 756% Canary Wharf Group has entered into an
arrangement whereby the exposure 1o the movement in 3 month LIBOR rates in the facility 1s fully hedged with
fixed interest rate swaps at a weighted average, including margins, of 7 2% The loan 1s repayabte in December
2014
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A bank loan with an outstanding principal amount of £348 7m secured against 10 Cabot Square and 20 Cabot
Sguare was repaid n November 2010 The related interest rate swap was broken at a cost of £23 7m, of which
£20 1m was provided 1n the hedging reserve at 31 December 2008 The related unamortised balance on the
hedging reserve of £15 3m and unamortised deferred fees of £1 7m have been written off the Consolidated
Income Statement Fees of £1 Om were incurred 1n connection with the repayment

A bank loan comprnsing an inial principal of £608 8m 1s secured aganst One Churchill Place The loan
amortises with a balloon payment of £155 Orn on matunty in July 2034 The loan carries a hedged interest rate
of 582% In 2011, £8 5m of loan principal was repaid in accordance with the loan agreement reducing the
principal at 31 December 2011 to £550 6m

in June 2011, Canary Whart Group entered into a £92 3m 5 year faciity secured agamnst 50 Bank Street The
facility carres interest at 3 month LIBOR plus a margin of 2 0% The exposure tc movements in LIBOR 1s fully
hedged at an all in rate including marging of 4 415% The facility is repayable in June 2016

In December 2011, Canary Wharf Group restructured a finance lease by acquinng the finance lessor company
at a total cost of £42 4m The transaction was funded by releasing the charge over related cash collateral The
effect of the restructunng was to extinguish the hability under the finance lease A total cost of £1 Om has been
recognised on the transacton, comprising fees of £0 2rm and an adjustment to the carrying value of the finance
lease habilty of £0 8m

Matunty profile of borrowings

Other Finance
Securised secured lease Preference
debt loans obligations Shares Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Contractual undiscounted cash flows
at 31 December 2010
Within one year 176 9 281 02 - 205.2
In one to two years 1754 327 o2 - 208 3
In two 1o five years 5561 4705 o7 - 1,027 3
In five to ten years 200 3 1824 11 4898 4 1,583 2
In ten to twenty years 1,544 7 3789 344 - 1,958 0
In twenty to thirty years 1,201 2 287 5 o8 - 1,498 5
4,554.6 1,380 1 46.4 499.4 6,480.5
Comprising
Principal repayments 2,342 4 9181 42 4 2750 3,577 9
Interest payments 22122 4620 40 224 4 2,902 6
4,554 6 1,3801 46 4 499 4 6,480 5
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Other Finance
Secunised secured lease Preference
debt loans ohligations Shares Total
£m £m £m em £m
Contractual undiscounted cash flows
at 31 December 2011
Within one year . 1750 341 - 2091
In one to two years 1724 317 - - 2041
In two to five years 5206 526 4 - 441 4 1,4884
In five 1o ten years 8324 144 9 - - 9773
In ten to twenty years 13753 343 8 - - 1,718.1
In twenty to thirty years 1,140 2 2497 - - 1,388 9
4,215.9 1,330 6 - 441.4 59879
Comprnising
Principal repayments 22847 10019 - 2750 3,561 6
Interest payments 19312 3287 - 166 4 2,426.3
4,215.9 1,330.6 - 441 4 5,987.9

The above tables contan undiscounted cash flows (including interest) and therefore result in higher balances than
the carrying values or farr values of the borrowings

Debt service

The weighted average interest rates paid dunng the year were as follows

2011 2010

% %

Secunitisaton 6.22 622

Other secured loang 6.16 633

Finance lease 0.75 066
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Companson of market values and carrying amount
31 December 2011

31 Dec ember 2010

Market Carrying Market Cartying

value amount Dnfference value dmount Difference
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Secunitisation (2,305 5) (2,402.5) 97.0 (2,371 2) (2464 7) 935
Secured loans {997.8) (996 2) (16) (811 86) (211 6) -
Finance lease - - - (41 6) (41 6) -
Non equity shares {270.5) (270.5) - (275 8} (275 B) -
{3,573 8) {3,669.2) 95.4 (3,600 2) (3.6937) 935

Other financial habilities
— Interest rate dervatives (547 1) (547 1) - (297 0} (297 O} -
Cash and monetary deposis 1,000 0 1,000.0 - 1,113 3 1,113 3 -
Total (3,120.9) (3,216.3) 954 (27839) (2877 4) 935

The d